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. 'Company Profile

TravelSky Technology Limited (the “Company” or, including its subsidiaries, the "Group”) is the dominant provider of information
technology solutions for China’s air travel and tourism industries. The Company has been devoted to developing leading edge applications
and services that address the needs of a wide range of industry participants - renging from airlines, airports and air travel products and
services suppliers to travel agencies, corporate clients, air travelers and cargo shippers - to conduct electronic transactions and manage
travel-related information. The core businesses of the Company include Electronic Travel Distribution (“ETD"), Airport Passenger Processing
("APP"), Data Networks, etc..

The Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC” or “China™) on October 18, 2000 and has a controlling
equity interest in each of TravelSky Technology (Hong Kong) Limited, Hainan Civil Aviation Cares Co., Ltd., Cares Shenzhen Co., Ltd.,
Cares Hubei Co., Ltd., Cares Chongging Information Technology Co., Ltd., Aviation Cares of Yunnan Information Co., Ltd., Civil
Aviation Cares of Xiamen Ltd., Civil Aviation Cares of Qingdao Ltd., Civil Aviation Cares of Xi'an Ltd., Civil Aviation Cares Technology
of Xinjiang Ltd. and InfoSky Technology Co., Ltd.. The Company-also holds a significant equity interest in each of the following
associated companies. Shanghai Civil Aviation East China Cares System-integration-Co., Lid., Shenyang Civil Aviation Cares of Northeast
China, Ltd., Aviation Cares of Southwest Chengdu, Ltd., HeiLongliang TravelSky Airport Technology Limited, Yunnan TravelSky Airport
Technology Limited and Shanghai Dongmei Aviation Tourism Onfine Co., Ltd.

The Group had 1,416 employees as at December 31, 2003.

The H shares of the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on Fe‘b\n ary 7, 2001,

Southern Air Holding Company, China Eastern Air Holding Company and China National Aviation Hold
35.0 per cent. of the equity interest in the Company is held by holders of its H shares. ‘

The Company established a Sponsored Level | American Depositary Receipt Programme. American depaositary shares under the programme
commenced trading on the U.S. over-the-counter market on December 27, 2002. S
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Mr. Ma

¥ Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

2003 has been an extremely tough year for the Group in its history of development. In particular, the sudden outbreak of Severe
Acute Respiratory Syndrome (“SARS”) had a strong impact on China’s air travel and tourism industries and the Group's core
businesses were also adversely affected as a result. At the same time, the further internal integration of the three major airline
holdings companies in October 2002 brought about a noticeable drop in the average price for the Group’s ETD and APP businesses
in comparison to their historical values. China’s accession to the WTO, together with ongoing industry policy adjustments following
the restructuring of the civil aviation industry, brought uncertain factors to the Group’s development. The increasing demands for
information technology products and better service quality not only brought development opportunities to the Group but also
resulted in a constant increase in the Group’s cperating costs. In addition, rapid development and extensive application of new
technologies such as open platform, wireless network, mobile computing and network computing technologies also posed a
potential challenge to the Group's existing business model.

Despite the above unfavourable operating environments, the Group has responded in a steadfast way and, with careful organisation
and sophisticated arrangements, has ensured the smooth implementation of all its operations. As a result, processing volume of
ETD and APP systems maintained a growing momentum; integrated service systems of marketing, products and security continued
to improve; key projects such as the new generation of ETD, APP project, e-business, e-ticket and data service made satisfactory
progress; and the distribution of travel products such as air-travel personal injury insurance and provision of information technology
solutions services which had been cutsourced by airlines and airports made significant breakthroughs. As a result, the infrastructure
that serves the Group’s strategic development was enhanced, and processing capability, security functions and interference resisting
ability of the system were further upgraded. In addition, the Group's revenue, earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as well as net profit and earnings per share all recorded satisfactory results.

TRAVELSKY TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2003



During Year 2003, China’s civil aviation industry accomplished almost all its strategic restructuring goals. The separation of functions
of the government and those of enterprises and the re-engineering of the industry management systems have been realised. The
industry framework witnessed tremendous changes. Looking into 2004, it is expected that the sustainable prosperity of China’s
economy, the revival of the global economy, the recovery of air travelers’ confidence and the implementation of marketing
programs by industry participants would resume growth to China’s air travel and tourism industries, which will definitely lay a solid
foundation for the development of the Group’s core businesses. Meanwhile, as leading airline holding companies and airport
management companies further their restructuring and business integration, higher standard for information technology solutions
is required so as to meet their customized needs in business developments, competitions, and operating efficiencies. All these will
provide a broad market space for development of the Group’s new businesses such as e-business and information technology
solutions for airlines and airports. In addition, it is estimated that China‘s tourism industry in 2004 is to return to its pre-SARS level
and that foreign and private enterprises are to speed up their strategic entries into the tourism market, one with the greatest
growth potential in the world. This promises to create valuable opportunities for the Group to promote its e-distribution business
of travel products such as electronic sales of air-travel personal injury insurance and hotel reservation.
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In order to face challenges, take up new opportunities and transform the Group into a major player with international presence
and core competencies, which is also advantageously positioned in China as well as in Asia, the Group will fully utilise its leading
position in the market, technology, expertise and resources, keep abreast of the needs of its users and focus on the following

ipate-in competition, strengthen business and core technology
& Integrated service systems of marketing, products and security, and strive to expand the
icrease the market share for the core businesses,

Ttiatives to develop businesses overseas in line with airline shareholders’ expansion into international markets, and
actively explore international route which can strengthen core competencies and utilise competitive edge to satisfy the
business needs of airline shareholders;

. play an active role in the participation of information technology development of industry participants such as airlines and
airports, adopt an effective combination strategy for business, technology and capital, and thus provide them with value-
added services;

. grasp opportunities in the development of tourism industry, speed up the construction of distribution platform for travel
products, develop travel products with combination advantages, get involved in the business chain of travel product
distribution and positively promote the distribution business;

. take significant opportunities arising from global optimization of production elements and transfer of industry assets,
keep pace with the restructuring of air travel and tourism industries, make full use of the opportunities arisen from China’s
accession to the WTO, explore the possibilities of establishing strategic alliances with leading international players, and in
turn provide favourable environment for the Group's rapid growth;

] continue to strengthen corporate governance, progressively establish committees for remuneration and investment, fully
utilise the role of independent directors, perfect corporate legal person governance; and meanwhile further the corporate
management mechanism, streamline work procedure, improve the accountability system where both rights and
responsibilities are accounted for, and further enhance the operating efficiency of the Group.
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The term of the first Board of Directors expired at the end of Year 2003. The second Board had been elected in accordance with
the Articles of Association. | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the first Board for their diligent work. | am also
convinced that under the leadership of the new Board, the Group will continue to adhere to its principles of sustainable profitability
and corporate value maximization, grasp favourable market opportunities, continue its customer-oriented strategy, persist in
technology and management innovation, improve service constantly, maintain its competitive edge and a healthy development,
and thus eventually bring satisfactory returns to the shareholders.

It is only with the cooperation of our management and staff members who spare no efforts in their work and with the full
understanding and support from our shareholders that the Group is able to achieve such remarkable results. Thus on behalf of the
Board, 1 would like to extend my deep and heartfelt gratitude to them all.

e

Chairman
March 11, 2004
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The Company is the dominant provider of information technology solutions for China’s air travel and tourism industries. The
Company is also the dominant provider of inventory management solutions for Chinese commercial airlines and the market leader
in the distribution of products and services of Chinese commercial airlines to domestic travel agencies, ticketing offices and
individual consumers. After two decades of development, the Company has developed a range of relatively comprehensive and
functional product lines for passenger information services, which address the needs of industry participants ranging from commercial
airlines, airports and travel products and services suppliers to travel agencies, corporate clients, air travelers and cargo shippers.
The product lines have also increased their market shares, improved their operating efficiencies and enhanced their service quality
standards. Meanwhile, the Company has developed core businesses such as ETD, APP and Data Network.

ETD

The Company’s ETD system provides inventory management functions to all Chinese commercial airlines and serves as a distribution
platform for the provision of products and services for domestic and overseas airlines and travel suppliers. In 2003, revenue
generated from ETD accounted for 48.3% of the total revenue of the Group.

The development of the Company’s ETD business experienced intense volatility in Year 2003. At the beginning of the year,
stimulated by the continuous growth of the domestic economy, the ETD business benefited from the booming air and tourism
industry. Bookings processed by ETD maintained its growing momentum since 2002. Unfortunately, with the outbreak of Severe
Acute Respiratory Syndrome (“SARS”) in April, the domestic air and tourism industries suffered great loss and consequently
booking volume processed by ETD dropped dramatically. However, SARS came under control in June, coupled with favourable
factors such as the gradual recovery of air traveler’s confidence, CAAC's “Sky Revival” program and the launch of marketing
initiatives by various domestic commercial airlines, rapid growth to the domestic aviation industry was restored. In Year 2003, the
ETD system processed approximately 96.8 million bookings on domestic and foreign and regional commercial airlines, an increase
of approximately 2.5% over the previous year, among which bookings on Chinese commercial airlines increased by about 2.7%
while that on foreign and regional airlines dropped by approximately 1.0%.

In Year 2003, in addition to improving its existing ETD products system, the Company continued its promotion and marketing
activities of ETD and strengthened its customized services to domestic and foreign commercial airlines. Supported by the Company’s
technology, Air China and China Eastern Airlines began to use products and services developed by the Company such as auto
settlernent of airline tickets, auto printing of international air ticket invoices and net fare display system, which address their needs
to improve operating efficiencies and service quality through information technology upgrade. In order to cater for China Southern
Airlines’ need for information technology solutions in its operation, the Company set up a special development team for the
provision of one-to-one service. The direct link between the Company's ETD Systemn and the flight management system of United
Airlines of America has been established thus making the latter the second airline company in North America (Northeast Airlines
of America being the first) to have links with the Company’s ETD system.

During Year 2003, the Company continued to strengthen its customer services while address the needs of travel agencies and
provide them with suitable products. During the SARS period, the Company actively carried out its “Crisis Marketing” and,
together with travel agencies, strived to overcome this difficult time. The Company also continued to enrich and improve its
product lines based on open platform technology to provide travel agencies with product support and better services, At the same
time, the Company adjusted its marketing strategies and formed strategic partnerships with major travel agencies to provide
customized service.
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Business Review

APP

The Company's APP system is designed to enhance airlines’ level of customer services for ground handling and processing efficiency.
The Company is currently the largest provider of APP services in China. In 2003, revenue generated from APP accounted for
26.0% of the group’s total revenue.

In Year 2003, after the successful installation of the APP system in the top 100 domestic airports in terms of passenger volume, the
Company entered into contracts for installation of the APP front end system with the remaining 26 domestic airports. These
contracts are estimated to be completed in the first half of 2004. By then the Company’s APP system will be installed at all
domestic airports, which will further reinforce the Company’'s market position in China’s aviation industry. In Year 2003, the
Company’s APP system processed approximately 71.8 million passenger departures, an increase of approximately 19.3% over the
previous year and accounted for 77.4% of the total passenger departures processed by domestic airports.

Following the successful launch of the new generation of APP front end system developed by the Company in Shenzhen Airport,

the Company continued to improve its new generation APP system and progressively established four product lines: Easy Airport
series for airport passenger processing, Easy Manager series for airport operation, Easy Check-In series for passenger service and
Easy Interface series for connection to other information systems. With the further improvement of these product lines, the
integration of APP system with information system of commercial airlines and airport will be gradually achieved, thus providing
comprehensive information technology solutions for the operations and management ¢f commercial airlines and airports as well
as more convenient, efficient and seamless services for air passengers.

During 2003, while improving and enriching the new generation APP product line, the Company installed the new generation APP
front end system successively in 10 airports including Zhengzhou, Taiyuan and Harbin Airport. Also, in response to the international
and domestic antiterrorist wave after the “9.11" terrorist attack, the Company successfully installed airport passenger access
information system at the request of government departments such as CAAC.

<€ Mr. Zhu Yong
Executive Director
CEO
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E-BUSINESS

Combining internet technology with the Company’s core systems of ETD, APP and data network, the Company’s self-developed e-
business improved steadily. E-business provides commercial airlines with an efficient and inexpensive distribution channel with
reduced distribution costs. It provides travel agencies with cost-efficient and convenient system connections as well as customized
services. It also provides air passengers with a variety of online travel products and services on a fully open basis. The e-business
products of the Company mainly include online product distribution, online check-in, online schedule, short message processing
platform, website ASP service, website hosting, e-ticketing and e-payment. In Year 2003, online air ticket bookings through
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travelsky.com accounted for approximately 2% of all the bookings processed by the Company's ETD system.
E-TICKET

The Company’s self-developed e-ticket system is based on the Company's ETD, APP and settlement systems. Currently, the Company
has built a well-structured and sophisticated e-ticket system based on ICS e-tickets and supplemented by CRS e-tickets and
Internet e-tickets. The system supports various functions of ticket booking such as e-tickets issue, display, alteration, cancellation,
return and re-issue. it also supports the processing of airport passengers who hold e-tickets, as well as payment and settlement of
e-tickets. In the past two years, Shenzhen Alirlines and Air China, through the use of the Company’s e-ticket solutions, have
broadened their sales networks and achieved significant returns. In 2003, tickets sold through the Company’s e-ticket system
exceeded 100,000. In the meantime, CAAC, with support from the Company, promulgated the PRC standard for e-tickets, which
facilitated the promotion of e-tickets in the China market.

DATA SERVICE

The Company’s self-developed data service system, through collecting data generated from cperation of the Company's ETD and
APP systems and the use of technologies such as databank, provides a variety of products and services to address the needs of air

travel industry participants such as industry regulatory authorities, commercial airlines, airports and travel agencies . At present,
the Company’s data services include data subscription system, air passenger market analysis, reservation analysis for sales agency,
Marketing Information Data Tape (MIDT), Billing Information Data Tape (BIDT), booking trend analysis and airline revenue analysis.
All these services are available to the customers through prints, facsimile, Internet, website and email to help them to make
decisions. In 2003, after Xiamen Airlines started to use the Company’s data service, now all domestic commercial airlines are using
the Company’s service.

E-TERM

The Company’s self-developed and open technology-based E-term supports multi-access methods such as private line and Internet.
With a graphic user interface of emulation, the product can allows an ordinary PC to emulate a traditional ETD system terminal,
thus shortening training period and increasing efficiency as well as reducing costs for customer by the expansion of PC functions.
in addition, E-term also supports emulation for other products such as Window CE and PDA, therefore providing a spectrum of
choices for customers. At present, nearly 2,000 customers are using E-term.
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DISTRIBUTION OF TRAVEL PRODUCTS

The Company's self-developed EasyBooking system is able to provide hotel and car-rental information all over the world, assist
travel agencies to make enquires and reservations for hotels and car-rentals, and provide distribution services for travelers. Currently,
the number of overseas and domestic hotels and car-rental agencies accessible through the Company’s system exceed 58,000 and
24,000 respectively. In addition, the Company, together with China Eastern Airlines Holdings Limited, established Shanghai Dongmei
Aviation Tourism Online Co., Ltd., and is currently exploring the business of travel product distribution as well as developing
complete information technology solutions for travel agencies which can integrate travel product reservation, binding sales,
pricing, ticketing and backoffice management.

SALE OF AIR-TRAVEL PERSONAL INJURY INSURANCE

The sales management system is the Company’s self-developed information processing system for sales of air-travel personal injury
insurance. Directly linked with the Company’s ETD system, the sales management systern makes full use of the Company’s existing
mainframe resources and data service systems. It electronically automates the sales, claims management and administration of air-
travel personal injury insurance, thus significantly enhances the efficiency for insurers, policy outlets and air travelers. Since its
introduction to the market in 2002, the business has expanded rapidly. In 2003, e-policies sold by the Company’s sales management
system exceeded 10,000,000.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICE

in 2003, through an associated company Shanghai Civil Aviation East China Cares System Integration Co., Ltd., the Company
undertook the information technology business outsourced by China Eastern Airlines and began to provide information technology
solutions to the airline companies. In the meanwhile, the Company also established airport information service joint venture

companies with airport management companies in Yunnan and Heilongjiang province respectively and provided information
technology solutions through the joint venture companies.

LOCAL DISTRIBUTION CENTERS

By the end of 2003, the Company had established aftogether 30 wholly-owned and joint venture branches across China. These
pranches are all over China and form the backbone of the Company’s local distribution centers as well as an important component
of the Company’s market service system. Crucial to the Company’s business operation, these local distribution centers play a key
role as important distributors for the Company’s existing products and services, customer service centers providing local technical
service and support, as well as important tools for the Company’s marketing waork such as market research, new product promotion
and customer feedback collection.

TRAVELSKY TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2003
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INFRASTRUCTURE

The Group’s infrastructure serves the Group's overall development strategy. The objectives of the Company’s infrastructure are to
ensure that the Company’s system capahility is in line with the growth of the business, and that it can take advantage of new
technologies to optimize system resource allocation, adjust system application mechanism and improve system resource functionalities

50 as to bring about improved security, reliability and interference resisting ability for system operation. Therefore, in 2003, the
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Company purchased a new mainframe computer and upgraded the Company’s system capability in processing and backup. Core
network and major network were also upgraded, which optimized the network route and enhanced the safety and stability of the
whole network. Meanwhile, the Company continued to strengthen the construction and implementation of its safety production
system to ensure a safe operation of the infrastructure. In 2003, the utilization rate of the Company’s Inventory Control System
(ICS), Computer Reservation System (CRS) and APP mainframe computer amounted to approximately 99.99%, 99.98% and
99.99% respectively, showing impressive results.

NEW GENERATION OF TRAVELER SERVICE SYSTEM

The Company’s new generation ETD plan will be terminated in 2004 having achieved all desired goals. In order to maintain its
leading position in the domestic market as well as seek greater development in the future Asian air travel industry amidst the
constantly changing market and technologies, the Company studied the construction of the new generation of traveler service
system in 2003.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the financial information of the Group contained in the
financial statements (together with the notes thereto) reproduced in this annual report. The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS”). The selected historical results as discussed
herein do not represent a prediction of the future business operations of the Group.

OVERVIEW

In the year ended December 31, 2003 ("Year 2003"), profit before taxation of the Group was approximately RMB272.3 million,
representing a decrease of 40.8 per cent. over that in the year ended December 31, 2002 ("Year 2002"). EBITDA reached
approximately RMB386.9 million, representing a decrease of 30.2 per cent. over that in Year 2002. Net profit was approximately
RMB242.5 million, representing a decrease of 46.5 per cent. over that in the previous year. The decrease in profitability of the
Group was mainly due to the fall in revenues from the Group’s ETD and APP businesses and the fact that the Company had to start
paying corporate income tax from the year 2003.

Basic and diluted earnings per share of the Company in Year 2003 were RMBO0.27.
TOTAL REVENUES

The total revenues of the Group for Year 2003 amounted to RMB893.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB83.8
million, or 8.6 per cent., from RMB977.4 million in Year 2002. The decrease resulted principally from a fall in average unit price of
the Company’s ETD and APP businesses following the strategic restructure of China’s air travel industry. The decrease in total
revenues reflected the following:

» ETD revenues represented 48.3 per cent. of the tatal revenues of the Group in Year 2003 as compared to 53.7 per cent.
in Year 2002. ETD revenues decreased by 17.7 per cent. to RMB431.8 million in Year 2003 from RMB524.9 million in Year
2002. The decrease in revenues resulted primarily from the fall in average unit price of ETD business.

. APP revenues represented 26.0 per cent. of the Group’s total revenues in Year 2003 as compared to 24.8 per cent. in Year
2002. APP revenues decreased by 4.3 per cent. to RMB232.1 miilion in Year 2003 from RMB242.6 million in Year 2002.
The decrease resulted primarily from the fall in average unit price of APP business following increased usage of APP system
service and a further integration of the domestic commercial airlines.

. Data Network revenues represented 17.8 per cent. of the Group’s total revenues in Year 2003 as compared to 16.8 per
cent. in Year 2002. Data network revenues decreased by 2.1 per cent. to RMB158.7 million in Year 2003 from RMB162.1
million in Year 2002. The decrease in data network revenues resulted from the suspension in use of the Company’s data
network by certain customers during a period following the outbreak of SARS in 2003.

. other revenues increased by 48.1 per cent. to RMB71.0 million in Year 2003 from RMB47.9 millicn in Year 2002. The

increase was principally caused by a growth in revenues from new businesses including sales of electronic distribution
system for air travel personal injury insurance and E-term.
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NET REVENUES
Net revenues decreased by 8.8 per cent. to RMB861.6 million in Year 2003 from RMB344.8 million in Year 2002.
OPERATING EXPENSES

Total operating expenses for Year 2003 amounted to RMB637.3 million, representing an increase of RMB98.4 million, or 18.3 per
cent., from RMB538.9 million in Year 2002. The increase is attributable to the continuous improvement in the Company's research
and marketing strategies which thereby expanded its efforts in the research and development of new products and new technology,
and partly because of the Group’s continuous efforts in expanding its market as well as in strengthening its support for localisation
of customers. The increase in operating expenses was also caused by the following:

. depreciation and amortization charge increased by 8.6 per cent., mainly due to an acquisition of a new large mainframe
computer during the year;

. labour cost increased by 48.4 per cent., primarily due to a significant increase in the number of employees to support the
development of business;

. operating rental expenses increased by 15.5 per cent., mainly due to additional offices rented by the Company for its
significant increase in the number of employees; and

. though there were increases in revenue, other operating costs of the Group increased by 27.3 per cent., mainly attributable
10 the increase in related costs arising from continuous efforts of the Group's local distribution centres (“LDCs”) in expanding

its market as well as in strengthening support for localisation of customers in Year 2003.

As a result of the above changes in net revenues and operating expenses, the operating profit of the Group decreased by RMB181.6
million, or 44.7 per cent., to RMB224.3 million in Year 2003 from RMB406.0 million in Year 2002.

SHARE OF RESULTS FROM ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Share of results from associated companies was RMB14.3 million in Year 2002, whereas share of results from associated companies
amounted to RMB11.5 million, representing a decrease of RMB2.8 million in Year 2003. The main reason for such a decrease was
due to a decrease in the profits of the associated companies.

MINORITY INTEREST

Minority interest increased by 92.7 per cent. to RMB6.7 million in Year 2003 from RMB 3.5 million in Year 2002. The reasons for
such an increase were attributable to the improved profitability in Year 2003 of subsidiary companies newly established in 2002.

NET PROFIT

As a result of the above factors, the Group’s net profit decreased by RMB210.7 million or 46.5 per cent. to RMB242.5 million in
Year 2003 from RMB453 .2 million in Year 2002.
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Financial Review

RESERVES AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION

After the appropriation of the statutory surplus reserve fund, the statutory public welfare fund and the discretionary surplus
reserve fund from the net profit as reflected in the Company’s statutory financial statements prepared under PRC GAAP, the
reserves available for distribution as at December 31, 2003, as stated in note 27 to the financial statements, amounted to RMB292.7
million, which is the lesser of the amounts as determined according to PRC GAAP and IFRS.

DISTRIBUTION OF DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors (the “Bcard”) recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMBO.102 per share for Year 2003, totalling

RMB90.6 million. After the appropriation of the dividend, the reserves available for distribution as at December 31, 2003 became
RMB202.1 million.

NET CASH FLOWS AND LIQUIDITY

The following table summarises the cash flows of the Group for the years presented:

Year ended December 31

2003 2002

(RMB in million) (RMB in million)

Net cash inflows from operating activities 551.5 622.5
Net cash used in investing activities (272.4) (94.7)
Net cash provided by financing activities (137.6) (27.2)
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents 1415 256.6

The Group's working capital for Year 2003 mainly came from operating activities. Net cash inflow for operating activities amounted
to RMB551.5 million.

In Year 2003, the Group had no short-term or long-term bank loans, and the Group also did not use any financial instruments for
hedging purposes.

As at December 31, 2003, cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB2,035.0 million, of which 76.5 per cent.,
21.0 per cent. and 2.4 per cent. were denominated in Renminbi, US dollars and Hong Kong dollars, respectively.
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LONG-TERM INVESTMENT

As at 31 December, 2003, the Group held RMB100 million treasury bonds with an interest rate of 3% per annum. The maturity
date of the treasury bonds is in December 2008.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
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As at 31 December 2003, the Group had no charges on its assets.
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The total capital expenditure of the Group was RMB410.9 million in Year 2003, representing an increase of RMB340.0 million
from RMB70.9 miltion in Year 2002.

The capital expenditure of the Group in Year 2003 consisted principally of purchases of hardware, software and software for
equipment in accordance with the Group's ETD and APP business strategies.

The Board estimates that the Group’s planned capital expenditure for year 2004 will amount to approximately RMB322.0 million,
which is mainly for the development and gradual implementation of the new-generation ETD, APP systems and other new businesses.

The sources of funding for the capital expenditure commitments will include net proceeds from the initial public offering of the
Group and internal cash flow generated from operations.

The Board estimates that the sources of funding of the Group in year 2004 will be sufficient for its capital expenditure commitments,
daily operations and other purposes.

The Board estimates that completion of the development of the new-generation ETD system will require total capital expenditure
of approximately RMB1.0 billion.

EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risks related 1o its capital expenditure since a substantial portion of its capital expenditure
involves payments for the purchase of imported equipment which are denominated in U.S. dollars. Under the current foreign
exchange system in the PRC, the Group is not able to hedge effectively against currency risks, except for the cash and cash
equivalents that are denominated in foreign currency.

GEARING RATIO

As at December 31, 2003, the gearing ratio of the Group was 14.8 per cent. (2002: 9.1 per cent.), which was computed by
dividing the total amount of liabilities and minority interests, by the total assets of the Group as at December 31, 2003.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at December 31, 2003, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.
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Financial Review -

EMPLOYEES

As at December 31, 2003, the total number of employees of the Group was 1,416. Personnel expenses amounted to RMB147.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2003, representing 23.2 per cent. of the total operating expenses of the Group for Year
2003.

The remuneration of the employees of the Group includes salaries, bonuses and other fringe benefits. The Group has different
rates of remuneration for different employees to be determined based on their periormance, experience, position and other
factors in compliance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations.

In Year 2003, the Group continued to provide its employees with opportunities to acquire skills in relation to the air travel industry,
computer technologies and business administration and provide training on the latest development in areas such as computer
technologies, personal development, laws, regulations and economics.

BASIC MEDICAL INSURANCE REGULATION

On 20 February 2001, the People’s Government of the Municipality of Beijing in the PRC promulgated the “Basic Medical insurance
Regulation for the Municipality of Beijing” (the “Regulation”). Given the fact that relevant regulations concerning employees’
medical insurance must be applied according to the policies applicable to the place in which a company is located, the head office
of the Company in Beijing implemented the Regulation from September 1, 2002 onwards. For Year 2003, the Company incurred
a total amount of RMB1,177,300 (a total amount of RMB311,900 was incurred in 2002} pursuant to the Regulation for employees’
medical insurance. The Board believes that by implementing the Regulation, the financial position of the Company has not been
materially affected.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors (the "Board”), Supervisory Committee and senior management of the Company are committed to implement
effective corporate governance policies to ensure that all decisions are made honestly and in accordance with the principles of
transparency, fairness and integrity. Effective corporate governance policies have also provided for the necessary checks and
balances. The Company will continue to improve its corporate governance structure, so as to strengthen corporate monitoring
and management to meet the expectation of its shareholders and related persons.

THE BOARD

In Year 2003, the first Board convened three board meetings with an average attendance of approximately 97.8 per cent. Directors
have worked diligently in fulfilling their duties in their respective terms.

The terms of the first Board of Directars expired in Octcober 2003. On December 5, 2003, an Extraordinary General Meeting was
held to elect 15 persons including Mr. Ma Tiesheng as directors, of which 9 were re-elected and 6 were elected for the first time.
The second Board comprises the said 15 directors, of which 4 are executive directors and 11 are non-executive directors (including
3 independent non-executive directors). As compared with the first Board, the second Board has two additional non-executive
directors (including 1 independent non-executive director). The biographies of Directors are set out in pages 79 to 81. Each
Director has extensive experience in aviation, information technology or finance. The second Board will continue to be responsible
for leading the Group to develop successfully.

In December 2003, the second Board held its first board meeting. 12 Directors attended the meeting, and the remaining 3
directors appointed other directors by written proxies to attend the meeting and vote on their behalf, in which Mr. Ma Tiesheng
was elected as Chairman and Messrs Wang Quanhua, Cao Jianxiong and Zhang Xueren were elected as Vice Chairmen. Members
of the Company’s senior management including CEQ and Company secretary remained unchanged.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established under the first Board and comprised two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wu Jiapei and Mr. Chow Kwok Wah, James. Before the publication of the interim or annual results announcement of the Company,
the Audit Committee will review the completeness, accuracy and fairness of the financial statements of the Company; consider
reports from the management and auditors of the Company; submit queries to and evaluate explanations from its finance department
and the auditors regarding the financial status of the Company; review issues such as the Company's internal control and financial
reporting procedures; and submit its report to the Board.

In December 2003, the first meeting of the second Board resolved to set up a new Audit Committee which comprised 3 independent
non-executive directors of the second Board, namely Mr. Wu Jiapei, Mr. Chow Kwok Wah, James and Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Don.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee was established in accordance with the laws of the PRC, and is responsible for reviewing the financial
position of the Company pursuant to its Articles of Association and determining whether decisions made by the Board and senior
management in the operation and management of the Company are in accordance with the relevant provisions of laws and
regulations . The first Supervisory Committee had performed its duty effectively during its term. On December 5, 2003, an
Extraordinary General Meeting was held to elect the second Supervisory Committee, which still comprised 8 supervisors {including
1 independent supervisor). The biographies of Supervisors are set out in pages 82 to 83. In the first session of the second Supervisory
Committee, Mr. Li Xiaojun was elected as Chairperson of the new Supervisory Committee.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Each Director fully understands that he is accountable to the shareholders for the operations of the Group and therefore pays
much attention to effective communication between the Board and the Company’s shareholders. Shareholders’ general meetings
are the key channel of communication among Directors, Supervisors, senior management and shareholders. All Directors, Supervisors
and senior management of the Company fully understand that they are obliged to attend the shareholders’ general meetings,
during which shareholders can raise questions regarding the operations and financial position of the Group. In addition to the
2002 Annual General Meeting convened in Year 2003, an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company was held on December
5, 2003 to elect a new Board and Supervisory Committee and to consider ongoing connected transactions of the Company. The
average shareholding held by shareholders who attended those two meetings represented 94.4% of all issued shares of the
Company.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company has strictly complied with the requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) on disclosure of information, and has promptly and fairly disclosed to its
shareholders and relevant parties all information relating to the Company which is discloseable to shareholders under the Listing
Rules. In Year 2003, the Company published announcements on a timely basis regarding waivers for its connected transactions
and the impact of SARS on the Company.

In view of the impact of SARS in 2003, the Company convened no international roadshow. Instead, management kept in touch
with securities analysts and investors by tele-conferences, interviews with investors and attending meetings held by investment
banks. Meanwhile, the Company is committed to providing its latest news to shareholders through the Investor Relations section
on its website (www.travelsky.net), from which announcements, interim and annual reports with detailed financial information
and results can be downloaded for review. Currently, the Company is rearranging the website's layout to provide investors with
more speedy and better quality information.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF BEST PRACTICE OF THE LISTING RULES

In Year 2003, the Company fully complied with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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INTERNAL MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL

In 2003, the Company took various initiatives to minimize losses arising from SARS which has a material adverse impact on the
Company’s operation. The Company also adopted a series of reform measures for the continucus improvement of its internal
management as well as standardization of its operations, and thus ensuring the implementation of the Company’s overall strategy
on corporate management and system.

The Company continues to improve its comprehensive budget management system integrating pre-event forecast, ongoing control
and post-event analysis, realising the overall goal of the Company by the allocation of tasks to various responsible departments.
The Company also improved its internal audit system and reinforced audit work of its branches on a regular and extraordinary
basis. Furthermore, the Company implemented a project management system in year 2003, which ensured that projects can be
carried out in accordance with the requirements of the State, the project schedules are reasonable, the use of resources is effective,
and the project cost is reduced.
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On anather hand, the Company further improved and confirmed the criteria for evaluation of targeted results of internal divisions
and branches. With further reforms in position management and remuneration systems, the Company adopted a position
performance linked management system. Based on position management and the principle that new development for business
requires new talent, the Company has been recruiting through multiple avenues to maintain a competitive edge in its manpower.
The Company has gradually established a good staff motivation mechanism by optimizing allocation of human resources.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present its report together with the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2003.

GROUP ACTIVITIES

The Group is the dominant provider of information technology solutions for China’s air travel and tourism industries. All Chinese
commercial airlines outsource their ICS systems to the Group. The core businesses of the Group include ETD, APP, data network,
etc..

An analysis of the Group’s financial performance is set cut under the section “Financial Review”.

No analysis of the Group’s revenues and contribution to operating profit by geographical areas is presented as revenues and results
of the Group during Year 2003 were principally derived from the operations of the Group in the PRC.

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The issued share capital of the Company as at December 31, 2003 amounted to 888,157,500 shares, with a par value of RMB1.00
each. As at December 31, 2003, the share capital structure of the Company was as follows:

Percentage to the total
number of shares in issue

Number of shares as at 31 December 2003
Shares as at 31 December 2003 (per cent.)
Domestic Shares 577,303,500 65.00
H Shares 310,854,000 35.00
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As at December 31, 2003, in accordance with the register maintained under Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance b1

(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"), the following substantial shareholders held an interest of 5 per cent or more &

in their respective class of share capital of the Company: (o)

St
=}
~d
Percentage of ‘5
respective Percentage of %
class of share total share =
Number of capital capital

Name of shareholder " Class shares held {per cent.) (per cent.)

J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. (1) " H shares 31,329,600 10.06 35

Government of Singapore Investment Corporation Pte Ltd (2) H shares 15,680,000 5.04 1.8

China TravelSky Holding Company Domestic 198,496,500 344 223

China Southern Air Holding Company (3) Domestic 116,460,500 20.2 13.2

China Eastern Air Holding Company (4) Domestic 109,414,500 19.0 12.3

China National Aviation Holding Company (5) Domestic 89,433,500 15.5 10.1

* Note:
(n As at December 31, 2003, according to the Corporate Substantial Shareholder Notice from J.P. Morgan Chase & Co., the Company

understands that J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. held approximately 10.06 per cent of the H shares of the Company, representing approximately
3.5 per cent of the Company’s total issued share capital.

2) As at December 31, 2003, according to the Corporate Substantial Shareholder Notice from Government of Singapore Investment Corporation
Pte Ltd, the Company understands that Government of Singapore Investment Corporation Pte Ltd held approximately 5.04 per cent of the
H shares of the Company, representing appraximately 1.8 per cent of the Company's issued share capital.

(3) As at December 31, 2003, China Southern Air Holding Company directly held approximately 9.4 per cent of the total issued share capital
of the Company and also owned, among other things: (i) 100 per cent interest in China Northern Airlines Co.; and (i) 100 per cent interest
in Xinjiang Airlines Co.. Since China Northern Airlines Co. and Xinjiang Airlines Co. held approximately 2.8 per cent and 1.0 per cent
interest respectively in the Company, China Southern Air Holding Company effectively controlied an aggregate interest of approximately
13.2 per cent in the total issued share capital of the Company;
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Report of Directors

(4) As at December 31, 2003, China Eastern Air Holding Company held approximately 7.7 per cent of the total issued share capital of the
Company and also owned, among other things: (i) 100 per cent interest in China Northwest Airlines Co.; and (i} 100 per cent interest in
Yunnan Airlines Co.. Since China Northwest Airlines Co. and Yunnan Airlines Co. held approximately 2.6 per cent and 2.0 per cent interest
respectively in the Company, China Eastern Air Holding Company effectively controlled an aggregate interest of approximately 12.3 per
cent in the total issued share capital of the Company; and

(5) As at December 31, 2003, China National Aviation Holding Company owned, among other things: (i) 100 per cent interest in Air China;
and (i) 100 per cent interest in China National Aviation Corporation. Since Air China and China National Aviation Corperation held
approximately 9.4 per cent and 0.7 per cent interest respectively in the Company, China National Aviation Holding Company effectively
controlled an aggregate interest of approximately 10.1 per cent the total issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, in accordance with the register maintained under Section 336 of the SFQ, there were no other shareholders
holding an interest of 5 per cent or more in their respective class of share capital of the Company as at December 31, 2003,

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at December 31, 2003, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives had any interest or short position in any shares,
underlying shares in and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations that is required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange in accordance with Section 7 and Section 8 of Part XV of SFQ, or any interest required to be
recorded and kept in the register of the Company pursuant to Section 352 of SFQO, or any interest required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

During Year 2003, no right was granted by the Company to its Directors, Supervisors or their respective spouses or children below
the age of 18 to subscribe for its equity or debt securities.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Each existing member of the Board and Supervisory Committee of the Company has entered into a service agreement with the
Company. All existing Directors and Supervisors will serve a term up to December 4, Z006. Directors and Supervisors may serve
consecutive terms of three years each if re-elected at general meetings.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN CONTRACTS

Certain existing members of the Board and Supervisory Committee are also members of management of various Chinese commercial
airlines which are shareholders of the Company. The contracts or transactions entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries with such airline shareholders have been referred to in the section ” Connected Transactions” of this Report of Directors.
Except as disclosed in that section, none of the Directors or Supervisors of the Company had a material interest in any contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during Year 2003.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
Details of the remuneration of Directors and Supervisors are set out in note 6 to the financial statements.
INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised for the Group for the year ended December 31, 2003.
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FIXED ASSETS

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year ended December 31, 2003 are summarized in note 12 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2003 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in shareholders’ equity.

wy
=
=]
R d
3]
5]
=
-
Q
S
=)
R d
=
=
=3
7]
&

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.102 per share for the year ended December 31, 2003.

STATUTORY PUBLIC WELFARE FUND

Details in relation to the statutory public welfare fund, such as the nature and application of the fund, and the basis of its
calculation, are set out in note 27 to the financial statements. Detaiis of movements of the fund are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in shareholders’ equity as part of the statutory reserves.

EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the employees’ retirement scheme of the Group are set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

Societe Internationale de Telecommunications Aeronautiques S.C. ("SITA 5.C.") was the largest supplier to.the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2003 and the total network usage fees paid to SITA S.C. in Year 2003 accounted for 6.8 per cent of the
Group's total operating expenses {excluding depreciation and amortization expenses) for that year. During Year 2003, the total
amount paid to the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 20.3 per cent of the Group’s total operating expenses
(excluding depreciation and amortization expenses).

Sales to the largest customer of the Group, China Southern Air Holding Company, accounted for 14.3 per cent of the Group's
total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003. During Year 2003, total sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for 53.2 per cent of the Group's total revenues. Three of these top five customers, China Southern Air Holding Company, China
Eastern Air Holding Company, and China National Aviation Holding Company, are among the principal shareholders of the Company,
holding an aggregate of approximately 35.6 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company as at December 31, 2003. The
aggregate revenue derived from the above major customers is set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above and in note 32 to the financial statements, none of the Directors, Supervisors and their associates nor any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors hold more than 5 per cent of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in any of the aforementioned suppliers and customers.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associated companies as at December 31, 2003 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM ISSUANCE OF THE H SHARES

The H shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on February 7, 2001, end the net proceeds from the issuance of
H shares amounted to approximately HK$1,186.0 million. For the year ended December 31, 2003, such amount has been used in
the same manner as set out in the prospectus of the Company dated January 29, 2001. In particular:

. approximately RMB659.0 million (HK$618.4 million) was used to finance a portion of the funding requirements of the
ETD plan;

. approximately RMB40.7 million (HK$38.2 million) was used to finance a portion of the expansion and upgrading of the
APP system;

. approximately RMB6.1 million (HK$5.7 million) was used to finance the expansion of other new businesses of the Company;

. approximately RMB71.3 million (HK$66.9 million) was used for daily operating activities; and

. the balance of the net proceeds is currently deposited with banks.

The Board believes that the Company currently has sufficient capital for its operations, including future expansion of its businesses
in the PRC and potential strategic acquisition or investments which the Company may decide to pursue in the future.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Ongoing Connected Transactions

During Year 2003, the Group continued to carry out the following transactions, which constitute connected transactions as
defined in the Listing Rules, and are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules:

(a) Provision of Services and Technological Support by the Group to the Company’s promoters

In Year 2003, the Group continued to provide all the promoters/shareholders of the Company (other than CTHC) with
services and technological support, including ETD, APP, data network, etc.. Details and financial informaticon relating to
the provision of such services by the Group during Year 2003, which are of a material nature, are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements.

(b) Lease of properties by the Company from CTHC

The Company continued to lease two properties from CTHC in Year 2003. Details and financial information relating to
such leases during Year 2003 are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

(c) Transaction between SITA INC. and InfoSky

During Year 2003, SITA INC. provides InfoSky with air cargo information management services in return for payment
based on usage at the agreed charges. As Societe Internationale de Telecommunications Aeronautiques Greater China
Holdings Limited (“SITAGCH") is a substantial shareholder of InfoSky and SITA INC. is an indirect holding company of
SITAGCH, SITA INC. is a connected person of the Company.

For Year 2003, total payments made by InfoSky to SITA INC. amounted to approximately US$377,034 (2002: US$1,119,000).
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(d) Network usage fees paid by the Company to SITA S.C.

During Year 2003, the Company continued to engage SITA S.C. in providing data network services to the Company. The
data network usage fees were determined based on the rates agreed between SITA S.C. and the Company. Since both
SITA INC. and SITA S.C. are owned and managed by almost the same group of shareholders, SITA S.C. is an associate of
SITAGCH, and SITA S.C. is therefore considered as a connected person of the Company.

For Year 2003, the network usage fees payable by the Company to SITA S.C. amounted to approximately RMB33,236,600
(2002: RMB34,911,000).
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(e) Transactions between the Company and the Cares Companies
The Cares Companies are joint venture companies established between the Company and Chinese commercial airlines
and airports for distributing the products of the Company and providing better service to customers in different regions.
The Cares Companies will pay fees to the Company, such as the connection and installation fees and physical identified
device (“PID”) fees, at the rates prescribed by the CAAC.

For Year 2003, the Company received fees from the Cares Companies of approximately RMB45,938,647.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors of the Company, such connected transactions:

0 were entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business;
(it) were conducted either
(a) on normal commercial terms (which expression shall be applied by reference to transactions of a similar nature

and to be made by similar entities); or

(b) (where there is no available comparison) on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the independent shareholders
of the Company are concerned; and

(i) were entered into either
(a) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such transactions; or
(b) (where there are no such agreements) on terms no less favourable than those available to or from independent

third parties;

(iv) if they fall within any of the following categories, did not exceed the upper limits set out below for the financial year
ended December 31, 2003:

Categories of transactions Cap Amount
Leasing and using properties RMB40.00 million
Payment to SITA INC. by InfoSky US$8.70 million
Revenues from the Service Companies RMB48.00 million
Expenditure to SITA S.C. RMB72.00 million
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In relation to such connected transactions, the Company has received a letter from the auditors stating that such connected
transactions:

(a) have received the approval of the Board;

(b) were entered into in accordance with the pricing policies as stated in the notes to the financial statements of the Company;

(@ were entered into in accordance with the terms of the respective agreements and documents governing those transactions;
and

(d) the aggregate amounts of the transactions have not exceeded the upper limits (referred to in (iv) above).

NEW WAIVER

As the waiver for the Company’s existing ongoing connected transactions had expired on December 31, 2003, the Company
applied in October 2003 to the Stock Exchange for a new waiver from strict compliance with the relevant requirements of the
Listing Rules in relation to them, details of which were set out in the announcement published on October 20, 2003 and the
circular dispatched to shareholders on November 10, 2003.

A waiver was granted by the Stock Exchange on December 10, 2003 after the approval of the ongoing connected transactions in
respect of the provision of services and technical support by the Company and its Service Subsidiaries (as defined in the circular) to
the Company’s promoters by the Company’s independent shareholders in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on December 5,
2003, and will be effective and valid for a term from January 1, 2004 to October 17, 2005. For the transactions listed in (iv) above,
a waiver was granted by the Stock Exchange from strict compliance with the requirernent for further disclosure by way of press
announcements for the period from January 1, 2004 to December 31, 2006 with the following upper limits:

Categories of transactions Cap Amount
Leasing and using properties RMB40.00 million
Payment to SITA INC. by InfoSky US$5.00 million
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries and associated companies RMB84.00 million
Transactions between the Company and SITA RMB72.00 million

The above waivers were granted subject to the conditions set out in the announcement published on October 20, 2003 and the
circular dispatched to shareholders on November 10, 2003.

Other Connected Transaction

The Company entered into two agreements on November 11, 2003 with Shanghai Civil Aviation East China Service System
Integration Company Limited ("SCAEC") pursuant to which the Company had agreed to purchase certain computer network
hardware and software and related services from SCAEC. As the Company holds 47% of the equity interest in SCAEC, and China
Eastern Air Holding Company, a promoter of the Company, controls 37% of the equity interest in SCAEC, SCAEC is a connected
person of the Company and the transaction constitutes a connected transaction under the Listing Rules. The total consideration to
be paid by the Company under the two agreements is RMB6,664,864, and is less than 3% of the Company’s net tangible assets,
hence no approval from the Company's independent shareholders was required. The Company considered the purchase to be in
line with its strategy of upgrading its information technology to complement the expansion of its business. An announcement was
issued by the Company on February 9, 2004 describing the terms of the transaction.
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TRUST DEPOSITS AND IRRECOVERABLE OVERDUE TIME DEPOSITS

As at December 31, 2003, the Group did not have any trust deposits or irrecoverable overdue time deposits. All of the Group’s
cash deposits are placed with commercial banks and are in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Group did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company's securities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

The Audit Committee of the Company has discussed and reviewed with the Company’s management the financial information
contained in the annual report and has also discussed certain other matters including internal control and financial reporting
procedures of the Company. The Board is of the cpinion that the Company has complied with the requirements of the Code of
Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during Year 2003.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association of the Company or under PRC laws.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

The Group was not involved in any material litigation or dispute in Year 2003.

AUDITORS

During the period from the date of incorporation of the Company and up to December 31, 2001, Arthur Andersen & Co in Hong
Kong and Arthur Andersen e Hua Qiang in the PRC were the Company's international and PRC auditors, respectively.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong) and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Ltd. Co.
(Certified Public Accountants in the PRC) are respectively the Company's international and PRC auditors for Year 2002 and Year
2003. A resolution to appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company's international auditors and PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian CPAs Ltd. Co. as PRC auditors, respectively, for the year ending December 31, 2004 will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, April 28, 2004,

By order of the Board

e

Chairman

March 11, 2004

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 TRAVELSKY TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Dear Shareholders,

During the year ended December 31, 2003, members of both the first and second Supervisory Committee of the Company (the
"Supervisory Committee”) have diligently performed their duties, in their effective offices respectively, in ensuring that the Company
has observed and complied with the Listing Rules, the Company Law of the PRC, the Articles of Association of the Company and
other relevant legislations and regulations which protect the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The first Supervisory Committee convened two meetings during Year 2003 to monitor corporate governance of the Company. The
Supervisory Committee also reviewed the Company’'s annual financial statements for 2002 and interim financial statements for
2003, and attended meetings of the Board of Directors {the “Board") to effectively monitor the policies and decisions made by the
Board so that they are in compliance with the Listing Rules, relevant legislative and regulatory requirements of the People’s
Republic of China, the Articles of Association of the Company, and the interests of the Company and shareholders.

In December 2003, the second Supervisory Committee was elected in the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company. The
second Supervisory Committee has carefully reviewed the Company’s financial statements for 2003 audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and considers that the financial
statements reflect a true and fair view of the financial position and results of operations of the Company and they comply with the
regulations applicable to the Company.

-*]
2]
=
- pu—(
£
£
3
o
>
1
=
Z
=
St
-*]
2
=
77
@
=
-t
G
S
b
S
S
=9
]
[~

The Supervisory Committee confirms that the Company has not been involved in any material litigation or proceedings or arbitration,
and there is no litigation or claim of material importance pending or threatened by or against the Company.

in the opinion of the Supervisory Committee, the Board and senior management of the Company have adopted prudent and
effective initiatives in light of opportunities arisen from the recovery of air travel and tourism industries, thereby minimizing loss
arising from SARS, which has a material negative impact on the Company. The Supervisory Committee is satisfied that the Directors
and senior management of the Company are committed to act honestly and to perform their duties diligently, so as to protect the
best interests of the Company and shareholders. The Supervisory Committee confirms that the report of the Board for the year
ended December 31, 2003 reflected the actual operational circumstances of the Company. in the opinion of the Supervisory
Committee, the Company has achieved satisfactory results during the year and the Supervisory Committee has confidence in the
Company’s future prospects and development.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee

Chairperson of the Supervisory Committee

March 11, 2004
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Report of International Auditors

PRICEAATERHOUSE(QOPERS
ﬁ -,E: Ek "]( Iﬁ @’ ‘5‘1’ ﬁﬁi $ 5‘% ﬁﬁ‘ PricewaterhouseCoopers

22nd Floor Prince’s Building

Central Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888

REPORT OF INTERNATIONAL AUDITORS
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TRAVELSKY TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of TravelSky Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) as of December 31, 2003 and the related consolidated income statement and statement of cash flows of the Group for
the year then ended. These financial statements set out on pages 33 to 72 are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
It is our responsibility is to form an independent apinion, based on our audit, on these financial statemenits and to report our
opinion sclely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the content of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the Group as of
December 31, 2003 and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year than ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, and comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 11, 2004
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Renminbi ("RMB"), except per share data)

Note 2003 2002
Revenues:
Electronic travel distribution 431,827 524,915
Airport passenger processing 232,105 242,563
Data network 158,729 162,067
Others 70,957 47,897
Total revenues 4,32(2) 893,618 977,442
Business taxes and other surcharges (32,005) (32,604)
Net revenues 861,613 944,838
Operating expenses:
Depreciation and amortisation (149,166) (137,373)
Network usage (58,792) (49,823)
Personnel . (147,783) (99,595)
Operating lease rentals 32(2) (42,870) (37,109)
Technical support and
maintenance fees (44,650) (45,735)
Commission and promotion expenses (74,537) (75,397)
Other operating expenses (119,492) (93,838)
Total operating expenses (637,290) (538,870)
Operating profit 224,323 405,968
Financial income, net 34,569 42,635
Share of results of associated companies 11,445 14,255
Other expenses, net 2,008 (2,998)
Profit before taxation and minority interests 5 272,345 459,860
Taxation 9 (23,092) (3,149)
Income before minority interests 249,253 456,711
Minority interests (6,712) (3,484)
Net profit 242,541 453,227
Earnings per share, basic and diluted (RMB) 10 0.27 0.51
Weighted average number of
shares outstanding (thousand) 10 888,158 888,158

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Note 2003 2002
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net 12 545,354 340,632
Intangible assets, net 13 11,093 9,098
Investments in associated companies 15 36,327 23,646
Cther long-term investment 16 100,000 100,000
Other long-term assets 17 4,901 5,746
697,675 479,122
Current assets
Inventories 18 2,635 2,018
Accounts receivable, net 19 18,352 4,447
Due from associated companies 65 377
Due from related parties, net 32(3) 83,619 135,371
Prepayments and other current assets 20 32,005 30,826
Short-term investments 1,920 2,195
Short-term bank deposits 21 505,000 539,491
Cash and cash equivalents 22 2,034,952 1,893,422
2,678,548 2,608,147
Total assets 3,376,223 3,087,269
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Paid in capital 25 888,158 888,158
Reserves 26 1,584,817 1,453,674
Retained earnings 27 405,063 464,181
2,878,038 2,806,023
Minority interests 40,305 37,600
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 23 366,061 193,044
Due to related parties 64,922 22,906
Dividends payable 11 — 14,342
Taxes payable 24 24,846 13,140
Deferred revenue 2,051 214
457,880 243,646
Total equity and liabilities 3,376,223 3,087,269
Net current assets 2,220,668 2,364,501
Total assets less current liabilities 2,918,343 2,843,623

Approved by the Board of Directors on March 11, 2004,

e

Chairman

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

Note 2003 2002
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net 12 512,637 307,475
Intangible assets, net 13 8,816 7,293
Investments in subsidiaries 14 64,264 55,771
Investments in associated companies 15 36,327 23,646
Other long-term investment 16 100,000 100,000
Other long-term assets 17 1,356 1,795
723,400 495,980
Current assets
Inventories 18 511 611
Accounts receivable, net 19 4,318 6,710
Due from subsidiaries 69,108 74,531
Due from associated companies 65 377
Due from related parties 32 69,498 123,024
Prepayments and other current assets 20 27,618 26,348
Short-term bank deposits 21 495,000 520,777
Cash and cash equivalents 22 1,905,577 1,778,829
2,571,695 2,531,207
Total assets 3,295,095 3,027,187
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Paid in capital 25 888,158 888,158
Reserves 26 1,583,293 1,452,879
Retained earnings 27 398,242 462,504
2,869,693 2,803,541
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 23 351,982 187,568
Due to subsidiaries 773 —
Due to related parties 52,099 12,017
Dividends payable 11 —_ 13,303
Taxes payable 24 20,548 10,757
425,402 223,646
Total equity and liabilities 3,295,095 3,027,187
Net current assets 2,146,293 2,307,561
Total assets less current liabilities 2,869,693 2,803,541

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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~ Consolidated Statement of Changes

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

Retained

Note Paid in capital Reserves earnings Total
Balance as at January 1,2002 888,158 1,295,014 333,045 2,516,217
Profit for the year — — 453,227 453,227
Dividend for 2001 — — (163,421) (163,421)
Transfer to reserves 26,27 — 158,660 (158,660) —
Balance as at December 31, 2002 888,158 1,453,674 464,191 2,806,023
Balance as at January 1, 2003 888,158 1,453,674 464,191 2,806,023
Profit for the year — — 242,541 242,541
Dividend for 2002 11 — — (170,526) (170,526)
Transfer to reserves 26,27 — 131,143 (131,143) —
Balance as at December 31, 2003 888,158 1,584,817 405,063 2,878,038

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

Note 2003 2002
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 570,912 625,623
Enterprise income tax paid (19,344) (3,149)
Net cash provided by operating activities 551,568 622,474
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets (307,134) (68,008)
Decrease/(Increase) in short-term bank deposits 34,492 (23,305)
Interest income 3,000 —
Dividends received from associated companies 2,615 509
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,591 1,027
Investment to related party (6,150) (2,000)
Increase in other long-term assets (845) (2,868)
Net cash used in investing activities (272,431) (94,645)
Cash flows from financing activities
Investment from minority shareholders of subsidiaries — 3,430
Dividend paid to group shareholders (137,125) (274,169)
Disbursement for other financing activities (482) (486)
Net cash used in financing activities (137,607) (271,225)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 141,530 256,604
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,893,422 1,636,818
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 22 2,034,952 1,893,422

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi ("RMB") unless otherwise stated)

1.  COMPANY ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

TravelSky Technology Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC”) on October
18, 2000 to engage in the provision of electronic travel distribution, airport passenger processing, data network and other
services in the PRC.

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on February 7, 2001,
As at December 31, 2003, the Company had direct or indirect interests in the following subsidiaries and associated

companies. All of these subsidiaries and associated companies are fimited liability companies incorporated in the PRC
except for TravelSky Technology (Hong Kong) Limited, which is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong.

Issued
Percentage and fully
Date of of equity paid capital
Name incorporation interest held RMB  Principal activities
Direct Indirect
Subsidiaries
Hainan Civil Aviation March 2, 1994 64.78% — 6,615,000  Provision of electronic
Cares Co., Ltd. travel distribution and
("Hainan Cares") cargo management
services; and sale and
installation of the
related information
systems
Cares Shenzhen Co., Ltd. April 14, 1995 61.47% — 7,000,000 Provision of electronic
("Shenzhen Cares™) travel distribution and

€argo management
services; and sale and
installation of the
related information
systems
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1.  COMPANY ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (consinued)
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Issued =]
Percentage and fully %
Date of of equity paid capital *y'j
Name incorporation interest held RMB  Principal activities =
» . U
Direct  Indirect g
Subsidiaries k=
=
i . . =]
Cares Hubei Co., Ltd. July 25, 1997 50% 12.5% 5,000,000  Provision of electronic L
("Hubei Cares”) travel distribution, .-Céx
airport passenger 'g
processing and cargo §
management services, &)
and sale and g
installation of the :
related information o
5
systems -
=]
Z
Cares Chongging December 1, 1998 51% — 9,800,000  Provision of electronic
Information Technology travel distribution,
Co., Ltd. airport passenger
("Chongqing Cares”) processing and cargo
management services;
and sale and
installation of the
related information
systems
Aviation Cares of Yunnan June 15, 2000 51% — 2,000,000  Computer hardware
Information Co., Ltd. and software
("Yunnan Cares") development and data
network services
InfoSky Technology September 20, 2000 51% — 20,695,000  Provision of cargo
Co., Ltd. ("InfoSky") management services

and related software

and technology
development;

and provision of technical
support, training and
consulting services
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi (“RMB "} unless otherwise stated)

COMPANY ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (continued)

Issued
Percentage and fully
Date of of equity paid capital
Name incorporation interest held RMB  Principal activities
Direct Indirect
Subsidiaries
TravelSky Technology December 13, 2000 100% — 3,162,067 Commercial services
(Hong Kong) Limited
Civil Aviation Cares of September 14, 2001 51% — 2,000,000  Computer hardware
Xiamen Ltd. and software
(“Xiamen Cares”) development and data
network services
Civil Aviation Cares of January 11, 2002 51% — 2,000,000  Computer hardware
Qingdao Ltd. and software
("Qingdao Cares”) development and data
network services
Xi'an Kaiya Civil Aviation July 9, 2002 51% — 2,000,000  Computer hardware
Science Co., Ltd. and software
{"Xi'an Cares") development and data
netwark services
Civil Aviation Cares August 16, 2002 51% — 3,000,000  Computer hardware

Technology of Xinjiang Ltd.

(“Xinjiang Cares")

and software
develocpment and data
network services
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COMPANY ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (continued)

)
N
=
The Company and its subsidiaries are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”. g
7]
)
3
Issued 17
Percentage and fully =
Date of of equity paid capital s
Name incorporation interest heid RMB  Principal activities g
Direct Indirect E
. =
Associated Companies L
[~
=
Shanghai Civil Aviation May 21, 1999 41% — 10,000,000  Computer hardware -
17
East China Cares System and software g
Integration Co., Ltd. development &)
{("Huadong Cares") and data _g
network services <
8
3
Shenyang Civil Aviation November 2, 1999 46% — 2,000,000 Computer hardware 8
Cares of Northeast and software Z.
China, Ltd. development
("Dongbei Cares™) and data
network services
Aviation Cares of November 28, 1999 44% — 2,000,000 Computer hardware
Southwest Chengdu, and software
Ltd. (“Xinan Cares”) development
and data
network services
Yunnan TravelSky Airport April 1, 2003 40% — 6,000,000  Computer hardware
Technology Limited and software

development
and technical
consulting service.
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Notes fo ¢

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi ("RMB”) unless otherwise stated)

Financial Statements

1.  COMPANY ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (continued)

Issued
Percentage and fully
Date of of equity paid capital
Name incorporation interest held RMB  Principal activities
Direct  Indirect
Associated Companies
Heilongjiang TravelSky April 30, 2003 50% — 6,000,000  Computer hardware
Airport Technology Limited and software
development
and technical
consulting service.
Shanghai Dongmei September 30, 2003 50% — 1,500,000  Sales of computers
Aviation Tourism and related parts
Online Co., Ltd and provision of

network, technical
services and economic
consulting service.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

("IFRS™). The consclidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets

and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current event and actions,

actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

TRAVELSKY TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2003




PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are as
follows:

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the accounts of the Company and the companies that
it controls. This control is normally evidenced when the Group owns, either directly or indirectly, more than 50%
of the voting rights of a company’s shere capital and is able to govern the financial and operating policies of an
enterprise so as to benefit from its activities. The equity and net income attributable to mincrity shareholders are
shown separately in the balance sheet and income statement, respectively.

The purchase method of accounting is used for acquired businesses. Companies acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition or to the date of
disposal.

Investments in associated companies (generally investments of between 20% to 50% in a company’s equity),
where significant influence is exercised by the Company, are accounted for using the equity method. An assessment
of investments in associated companies is performed when there is an indication that the assets have been
impaired or the impairment losses recognised in prior years no longer exist .

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of the investment, the investment is reported at nil
value and recognition of losses is discontinued except to the extent of the Group’s commitment.

Intercompany balances and transactions, including intercompany profits and unrealised profits and losses are
eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with associated companies are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the associated companies, against the investment in the associated companies. Unrealised
losses are eliminated similarly but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other

events in similar circumstances.
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi ("RMB ") unless otherwise stated)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{b) Associated companies

Associated companies are entities in which the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, or over
which the Group has significant influence, but which it does not contro! and are accounted for using the equity
method. Such equity interests are carried in the balance sheet at amounts that reflect its share of the net assets of
the associated companies and include goodwill on acquisition. Equity accounting involves recognising in the
consolidated income statement the Group's share of the profit or loss for the year of the associated companies.

Investments in associated companies are accounted for using the equity method in the Company’s balance sheet.
(¢) Measurement currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Company and its
PRC subsidiaries, the measurement currency of the Company and its PRC subsidiaries has been determined to be
RMB, and the measurement currency of TravelSky Technology (Hong Kong) Limited has been determined to be
Hong Kong dollars. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, financial statements of TravelSky Technology
(Hong Kong) Limited are translated based on the policies as described in Note (d) below.

(d) Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in currencies other than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated
into RMB at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities in other
currencies are translated at historical rates. Exchange gains or losses arising from changes in exchange rates
subsequent to the transaction dates are included in the determination of net profit.

The Group did not enter into any hedge contracts during any of the periods presented.

Where the operations of a foreign company are integral to the operations of the Company, the translation principles
are applied as if the transactions of the foreign operation had been those of the Company. At each balance sheet
date, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate, non-monetary items, which are
carried at historical cost, are translated using the historical rate as of the date of acquisition and non-monetary
items which are carried at fair value are translated using the exchanga rate that existed when the values were
determined. Income and expense items are translated at the exchange rates in place on the dates of the transactions.
Resulting exchange differences are recognised in the income statement during the year.

TRAVELSKY TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2003
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Foreign currencies (continued)

The foreign consolidated subsidiary is regarded as foreign entity if it is financially, economically and organisationally
autonomous. Its reporting currency is the respective local currency. Financial statements of a foreign consolidated
subsidiary are transiated at year-end exchange rates with respect to the balance sheet, and at exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions with respect to the income statement. All resulting translation differences are included
in a translation reserve in equity.

Any goodwill or fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are recorded using the exchange rate at the effective date of the transaction. Exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that, in substance, forms part of the Company's net investment in a foreign entity are
classified as equity in the consolidated financial statements until the disposal of the net investment. Exchange
differences on transactions which hedge the Company’s net investment in a foreign entity are taken directly to
the translation reserve in equity.

On the disposal of a foreign entity, the cumulative amount of exchange differences that relate to the foreign
entity is recognised as income or as expenses in the same period in which the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.
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(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

loss. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to
expense in the year in which they are incurred. When the expenditure results in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the asset, the expenditure is capitalised.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into consideration their estimated residual value. The estimated useful lives of property,
plant and equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Computer systems and software ‘ 3-11 years
Motor vehicles 6 years
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 5-9 years

When assets are sold or retired, their costs and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and
any gain or loss resulting from their disposals is included in the determination of net profit.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Assets under construction represent buildings under construction and computer systems and equipment pending
installation, and are stated at cost. Costs include construction and acquisition costs, and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance the assets during the period of construction or installation and testing. No
provision for depreciation is made on assets under construction until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for use.

(f) Intangible assets

Intangible assets mainly represent software.

Cost of acquisition of the new software is capitalised and treated as an intangible asset if these costs are not an
integral part of the related hardware. Software is amortised on a straight line basis over 2-3 years.

Costs incurred in order to restore or maintain the future economic benefits that an enterprise can expect from the
originally assessed standard of performance of existing software systems are recognised as an expense when the
restoration or maintenance work is carried out.

(g) Research and development costs

Expenditures for research and development are charged against income in the period incurred except for software
development costs which comply strictly with the following criteria:

. the software is clearly defined and costs are separately identifiad and measured reliably;

. the technical feasibility of the software is demonstrated;

. the software will be sold or used in-house;

. a potential market for the software or its usefulness for internal use is demonstrated; and

. adequate technical, financial and other resources required for completion of the software development
are available.

Capitalised development costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives. The period of
amortisation does not normally exceed 5 years. During the year ended December 31, 2003, no development costs
were capitalised as they did not meet all the conditions listed above (2002: nil).

The recoverable amount of development costs is estimated whenever there is an indication that the asset has
been impaired or that the impairment losses recognised in previous years no longer exist.

TRAVELSKY TECHNCOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2003
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets
Financial instruments are reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, whenever it is probable that the company will not collect all amounts
due according to the contractual terms of loans, receivables or held-to-maturity investments, an impairment or
bad debt loss is recognised in the income statement. Reversal of impairment losses previously recognised is recorded
when the decrease in impairment loss can be objectively related to an event occurring after the write-down. Such
reversal is recorded in income. However, the increased carrying amount is only recognised to the extent it does
not exceed what amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

For available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is included in net
profit or loss for the period when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The recoverable amount of
a debt instrument remeasured to fair value is the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the
current market interest rates for a similar financial asset. A reversal of an impairment loss is recorded when the
decrease in the impairment loss can be objectively related to an event occurring after the write down. Such
reversal is recorded in income.
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Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment in subsidiaries and associated companies are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment

loss is recognised in income for items of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment in subsidiaries
and associated companies carried at cost. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and
value in use. The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction
while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of
an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets
or, if it is not possible, for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment
losses recognised for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. The reversal is recorded in income. However, the
increased carrying amount of an asset due to a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised to the extent it does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for that asset in prior years.
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi ("RMB") unless otherwise stated)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Investments

The Group classified its investments into the following categories: held-to-maturity, trading and available-for-sale.
Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Company has the positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity other than loans and receivables originated by the Company are classified as held-
to-maturity investments. Investments acquired principally for the purpase of generating a profit from short-term
fluctuations in price are classified as trading. All other investments, other than loans and receivables originated by

the company, are classified as available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity investments are included in non-current assets unless they mature within 12 months of the
balance sheet date. [nvestments held for trading are included in current assets. Available-for-sale investments are
classified as current assets if management intends to realise them within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

All purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the Group commits

to purchase or sell the asset.

Investments are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given for them, including

transaction costs.

Available-for-sale and trading investments are subsequently carried at fair value without any deduction for

transaction costs by reference to their quoted market price at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses on measurement to fair value of available-for-sale investments are recognised directly in the fair
value reserve in shareholders’ equity, until the investment is sold or otherwise disposed off, or until it is determined
to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is included in net profit
or loss for the period.

Changes in the fair values of trading investments are included in financial expense.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
)] Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the balance sheet mainly include cash and cash equivalents,
short-term bank depuosits, accounts receivable, advance to suppliers, due from associated companies and related
parties, treasury bonds, other long-term assets, acccunts payable and due to related parties. The accounting
policies on recognition and measurement of these items are disclosed in the respective accounting policies.

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains, and losses relating to a financial instrument classified as
a liability are reported as expense ar income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity
are charged directly to equity. Financial instruments are offset when the Company and the Group have a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

M

(m)

(n)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of the assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Rental payments under operating leases are charged to expense based on the straight-line
method over the period of the leases.

Inventories

Inventories, which principally comprise equipment for sale, spare parts and consumable items, are carried at the
jower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined based on the first-in, first-out ("FIFO”) method and
comprises all costs of purchase and other casts incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Accounts Receivable and provision for bad debts

Accounts receivable are initially recorded at actual amounts. Provisions for bad debts are made based on the
assessment of their collectibility and are provided for using the “allowance method”. Based on the actual
circumstances and experiences, specific provisions are set against balances that have been assessed to be
uncollectible. A general provision is then set against the remaining balance based on the aging using the respective
percentages as tabulated below:

Aging Provision for bad debts as a
percentage of accounts receivable

Between 7 months and 1 year 25%
Between 1 and 2 years 50%
Qver 2 years 100%

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost.

Cash represents cash in hand and deposits with banks or other financial institutions which are repayable on
demand.

Cash equivalents represent short-term, highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in

value.

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 TRAVELSKY TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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~ Notes to the Consolidatec

{Amounts expressed in Renminbi {"RMB") unless otherwise stated)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continucd)

(o) Taxation

Taxation of the Group except for TravelSky Technology (Hong Kong) Limited is provided based on the tax laws and
regulations applicable to PRC enterprises. The Group provides for PRC enterprise income tax on the basis of its
income for statutory financial reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expense items that are not assessable
or deductible for tax purposes.

Hong Kong profits tax of TravelSky Technology (Hong Kong) Limited is provided on the estimated assessable
profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong during the year.

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
base of an asset or liability and its carrying amount in the balance sheet. Currently enacted tax rate are used in the
determination of deferred taxation. The tax base of an asset or liability is the amount attributed to that asset or
liability for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Other tax liabilities are provided in accordance with the regulations issued by the PRC government authorities.

(p) Retirement scheme

The fixed contributions for retirement benefits made under defined contribution schemes are charged to expense
in the year to which they relate.

(q) Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimation can be made for the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimation. Where the
effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in provision reflecting the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)  Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised, net of sales discount, when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably on the following basis:

. Revenue for electronic travel distribution services is recognised when the services are rendered;

. Revenue for airport passenger processing services is recognised when the services are rendered;

. Revenue for data network services is recognised as revenue when the services are rendered;

. " Sale of equipment is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have

been transferred to the buyer;

° Revenue for equipment installation project is recognised by reference to the stage of completion when
this can be measured reliably. The stage of completion is determined in the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs. When the outcome of the
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transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to
the extent of expenses recognised that are recoverable. In the period in which it is determined that a loss
will result from the performance of the contract, the entire amount of the estimated ultimate loss is

charged against income; and

. Interest income from deposits in banks or other financial institutions is recognised on an accrual basis.
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi ("RMB™) unless otherwise stated)

4. REVENUES

Revenue primarily comprises the fees earned by the Group for the use of the Group’s electronic travel distribution, airport
passenger processing and data network, which provide flight seat control and sales, real-time check in, flight allocation,
cargo management services and data-intensive communication services.

These fees are primarily effected on terms determined by Civil Aviation Administration of China (“CAAC”) and other
relevant PRC authorities. A substantial portion of these fees was generated from shareholders of the Company.

(n Electronic travel distribution services are provided by the Group’s Inventory Control System and Computer
Reservation System, which provide real-time flight seat control and flight reservation inforrmation for the airlines
and travel agencies.

@) Airport passenger processing services are provided by the Group's Airport Passenger Processing System, which
provides check-in, boarding, baggage control, flight navigation and flight allocation services for airlines and
airports located in the PRC and in several foreign cities.

(3) The Group charges airlines, airports and travel agencies for the use of the Group’s data network.

(4) The Group also sells equipment related to the use of the Group’s systerns to airlines, airports and travel agencies.

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging (crediting) the following:

2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB 000
After charging:
Depreciation 141,904 130,298
Amortisation 7,262 7,075
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,651 5,133
Operating lease rentals 42,870 37,109
Provision for doubtful debts 2,377 2,981
Cost of equipment sold 13,561 9,551
Contributions to defined contribution pension scheme 3,320 1,113
Auditors’ remuneration 1,444 1,467
Contribution to housing fund 3,123 1,968
Research and development expenses 78,427 68,314
After crediting:
Interest income (33,213) (42,081)
Exchange gain (1,839) (252)
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DIRECTORS’, SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS
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2003 2002 £

RMB'000 RIMB'000 %

N

Fees for executive directors — — o]
Fees for non-executive directors — — o)
9

Fees for supervisors — — g
Other emoluments for executive directors: =)
- basic salaries and allowances 231 337 :':‘

- bonus 1,647 1,202 ]

- retirement benefits 28 40 ..g
Cther emoluments for non-executive directors — — %
Other emoluments for supervisors 963 725 %
Total 2,869 2,304 @)
9

=

)

No director had waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years. s
g

Details of emoluments paid to the five highest-paid employees (mainly senior executives) are as follows: 2

2003 2002

RMB’000 RMB’000

Basic salaries and allowances 324 341
Bonus 1,678 1,202
Retirement benefits 40 40
2,042 1,583

Number of directors 3 4
Number of employees 2 1
5 5

The annual emoluments paid during the year ended December 31, 2003 to each of the directors (including the five
highest paid employees) fell within the band from RMB nil to RMB 1 million (2002: from RMB nil to RMB 1 million).

During the year ended December 31, 2003, no emolument was paid to the five highest-paid individuals (including directors
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company or as compensation for loss of office (2002: nil).
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~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi {("RMB ") unless otherwise stated)

7. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

All the full time employees of the Group are covered by a state-sponsored pension scheme under which the employees are
entitled to an annual pension equal to their basic salaries at their retirement dates. The PRC government is respansible for
the pension liability to these retired employees. The Group was required to make specified contributions to the state-
sponsored pension scheme at the rate of 19% of the employees’ basic salaries for the year ended December 31, 2003
(2002: 16%). The contributions to the pension scheme made by the Groug for the year ended December 31, 2003
amounted to RMB 3,319,000 (2002: RMB 1,113,000). Under this scheme, the Group has no obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions made.

8.  HOUSING FUND

All the full-time employees of the Group are entitled to participate in a state-sponsored housing fund. The fund can be
used by the Group for the construction of employee quarters, by the employees for housing purchases, or may be withdrawn
upon their retirement. The Group is required to make annual contributions to a state-sponsored housing fund eguivalent
to a certain percentage of each employee’s salary. The contributions by the Group to the housing fund for the year ended
December 31, 2003 amounted to approximately RMB 3,122,000 (2002: RMB 1,968,000).

The average number of employees in 2003 was 1,416 (2002: 1,170).

9. TAXATION

Income Tax
2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB’000
PRC enterprise income tax-current 23,552 2,680
Hong Kong profits tax-current (460) 459
Deferred taxation — _
23,092 3,149

Under PRC income tax law, the Company is subject to enterprise income tax (“EIT”) at a rate of 33% on the taxable
income as reported in its statutory accounts which are prepared based on the accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to PRC enterprises. The Company was registered as a new technology enterprise in October 2000 in
Zhongguancun Haidian Science Park and has been approved by the Haidian State Tax Bureau (Document (2000)
Haiguoshuiersuo No.19) to enjoy EIT preferential rate of 7.5% from January 1, 2003 to December 31, 2005.

The Company's subsidiaries are entitled to different preferential tax rates, ranging from 0 to 33%. These subsidiaries are
located in special economic zones (Mainan Cares and Shenzhen Cares ) for which the applicable tax rate is 15%, or
designated as "New Technology Enterprise” (Chongging Cares) for which the applicable tax rate is 15% or located in
Western part of China (Xinjiang Cares) enjoying preferential tax rate of 0%. In addition, these subsidiaries are entitled to

certain reductions in tax rates in their initial years of operations.
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TAXATION (continued)

Income Tax (continued)

The reconciliation of EIT at the statutory rate of 33% applied to income before taxation for the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002, to the effective rate actually recorded in the consolidated income statement, is as follows:

2003 2002
Statutory tax rate 33% 33.0%
Effect of preferential tax rates applicable to the Company (23)% (31.8)%
Effect of preferential tax rates applicable to certain subsidiaries (2)% (0.5)%
Effective income tax rate 8% 0.7%

There were no material temporary differences for which deferred taxation had not been provided for as at the balance
sheet dates.

The combined effect of tax holidays available to the Company and the preferential tax rates applicable to certain subsidiaries

is as follows:

2003 2002
Aggregate amount (RMB'000) 70,902 148,604
Per share effect (RMB) 0.08 0.17

However, the preferential tax treatments the entities comprising the Group obtained, including the EIT preferential rate
enjoyed by the Company from Janurary 1, 2003 to December 31, 2005 as mentioned above, may be subject to review by
higher authorities. Should the preferential tax treatments not be available to the Group, additional EIT expenses may arise.

Business Taxes

The Group is subject to business taxes on its service revenues:

Electronic trave! distribution, airport passenger processing and data network 3%
Training, technical support service, rental and others 5%

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 TRAVELSKY TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi (“RMB") unless otherwise stated)

9, TAXATION (continued)
Value-Added Tax (“VAT")

The Group’s sales of equipment are subject to Value Added Tax (VAT). The Company and one of its subsidiary (InfoSky) are
certified by the tax authorities as general tax payers, and other subsidiaries of the Company are small-scale VAT tax payers.
The applicable tax rate is 17% for general tax payers, and 4%-6% for small-scale VAT tax payers.

For general tax payers, input VAT from purchase of equipment for sale can be netted off against output VAT from sales.

VAT payable or receivable is the net difference between periodic output and deductible input VAT,

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 have been computed by dividing the
net profit of RMB242,541,000 and RMB453,227,000, by the weighted average number of 888,157,500 and 888,157,500
ordinary shares issued and outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively.

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002.

11. DIVIDENDS

The shareholders in the Annual General Meeting on Mar 14, 2003 approved the final dividend in respect of 2002 of RMB
0.192 per share amounting to a total of RMB170,526,240. The amount was accounted for in shareholders’ equity as an
appropriation of retained earnings in the year ended December 31, 2003.

The Board of Directors proposed a final dividend of RMB 0.102 per share for the year ended December 31, 2003, totaling
approximately RMB90,592,000. The proposed dividend distribution is subject to shareholders’ approval in their next
general meeting and will be recorded in the Group’s financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2004, After
the appropriation of the dividend, the reserve available for distribution as at December 31, 2003 was approximately
RMB202,137,000 (2002: RMB156,434,000).

2003 2002

Dividend proposed after year end
Proposed final dividend (RMB'000) 90,592 170,526
Dividend per share (RMB) 0.102 0.192
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

2]

b

=

As at December 31, property, plant and equipment comprised: g

]

s

The Group: 3

7]

=

Computer Furniture, g

systems fixtures Assets g

and Motor and other under =

Buildings software vehicles  equipment construction Total E

RMB000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 :é

Cost %

As at January 1, 2002 12,495 927,635 14,870 13,346 981 969,327 %

Purchases 2,611 55,134 5,579 1,280 7,967 72,571 )]

Disposals (15) (118,815) — (405) (25) (119,260) f:’

As at December 31,2002 15,091 863,954 20,449 14,221 8,923 922,638 ;

ued

8

Purchases 4,011 306,821 4,874 5,646 26,895 348,247 *5

Transfer upon completion 29,903 — — — (29,903) - Z
Disposals —_ (44,056) (858) {(229) — (45,143)
As at December 31,2003 49,005 1,126,718 24,465 19,638 5815 1,225,742

Accumulated depreciation

As at January 1, 2002 (1,704) (552,260) (7,435) (3,931) — (565,330)
Charge for the year (773) (126,493) (2,203) (829) — (130,298)
Write-back on disposals — 113,301 — 321 — 113,622
As at December 31, 2002 (2,477) (565,452) (9,638) (4,439) — (582,006)
Charge for the year (1,333) (133,497) (2,904) (4,176) — (141,804)
Write-back on disposals — 42,657 731 134 — 43,522
As at December 31, 2003 (3,810) (656,286) (11,811) (8,481) — (680,388)

Net book value
As at December 31, 2002 12,614 298,502 10,8711 9,782 8,923 340,632

As at December 31, 2003 45,195 470,433 12,654 11,157 5,915 545,354
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12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET (continued)

The Company:

Computer Furniture,
systems fixtures Assets
and Motor and other under
Buildings software vehicles  equipment construction Total

RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Cost

As at January 1, 2002 1,532 905,956 10,269 9,915 720 928,392
Purchases 752 49,629 1,927 982 720 54,010
Disposals — (113,792) — (261) — (114,053)
As at December 31, 2002 2,284 841,793 12,196 10,636 1,440 868,349
Purchases 3,136 306,336 3,089 3,866 1,440 317,867
Transfer upon completion 24,678 — — — — 24,678
Disposals — (42,180) (804) (148) — (43,130)
As at December 31, 2003 30,098 1,105,949 14,481 14,356 2,880 1,167,764

Accumulated depreciation

As at January 1, 2002 (21) (537,524) (4,963) (2,649) —_ (545,157)
Charge for the year 97) (122,718) (1,447) (850) — (125,112)
Write-back on disposals — 109,083 — 312 —_ 109,395

As at December 31, 2002 (118) (551,159) (6,410) (3,187) — (560,874)
Charge for the year (384) (131,330) (1,745) (2,445) — (135,904)
Write-back on disposals — 40,851 679 121 — 41,651

As at December 31, 2003 (502) (641,638) (7.476) (5,511) — (655,127)

Net book value
As at December 31, 2002 2,166 290,634 5,786 7,449 1,440 307,475

As at December 31, 2003 29,596 464,311 7,005 8,845 2,880 512,637
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
¥
=
@
The Group The Company =)
2003 2002 2003 2002 2
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 5
Cost .g
As at January 1 19,531 17,586 16,701 15,053 %
Additions 9,257 1,935 8,181 1,648 .E
As at December 31 28,788 19,531 24,882 16,701 z
Accumulated amortisation §
As at January 1 (10,433) (3,358) (9,408) (2,855) =
—(
Amortisation for the year (7,262) (7,075) (6,658) (6,553) 8
As at December 31 (17,695) (10,433) (16,606) (9,408) g
Net book value as at December 31 11,093 9,098 8,816 7,293 LQ)
s
) [=]
The intangible assets of the Group and the Company represent computer software acquired. *;
2
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES Z

The Group The Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Share of net assets —_ — 64,264 55,771

A listing of the Group's subsidiaries is shown in Note 1.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Group The Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Share of net assets 36,327 23,646 36,327 23,646

A listing of the Group's associated companies is shown in Note 1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 TRAVELSKY TECHNOLOGY LIMITED




~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi ("RMB") unless otherwise stated)

16. OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENT

As at December 31, the Company and the Group had the following held-to-maturity investment:

Interest rate and maturity 2003 2002
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Treasury bonds 3% per annum with maturity in December 2008 100,000 100,000

17.  OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS

As at December 31, other long-term assets of the Company and the Group represented rental deposits and other long-
term asset.

18. INVENTORIES

The Group The Company

2003 2002 2003 2002

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

Equipment for sale 2,587 1,637 405 505
Spare parts 83 347 80 80
Other 59 34 26 26
Total 2,729 2,018 511 611
Less: Provision 94 — — —
2,635 2,018 511 611

Inventories with a total carrying value of approximately RMB nil as at December 31, 2003 and 2002 are stated at net
realisable value.

No inventories have been pledged as security for borrowings.
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

As at December 31, accounts receivable comprised:

The Group The Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Accounts receivable 21,820 8,043 15,163 10,654
Provision for doubtful debts (3,468) (4,596) (10,845) (3,944)
Accounts receivable, net 18,352 4,447 4,318 6,710

The credit period is normally within six months after the services are rendered.

The aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:
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The Group The Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Within 6 months 14,809 3,811 11,027 5,422
Over 6 months but within 1 year 1,907 651 550 651
Over 1 year but within 2 years 2,896 1,599 2,228 1,598
Over 2 years but within 3 years 325 1,078 325 1,078
Over 3 years 1,883 1,904 1,033 1,904
21,820 9,043 15,163 10,654

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As at December 31, prepayments and other current assets comprised:

The Group The Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Prepayments 4,774 5,165 3,504 4,088
Other current assets 27,231 25,661 24,114 22,260
Total 32,005 30,826 27,618 26,348
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi ("RMB™) unless otherwise stated)

21. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

The weighted average annual interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 2.33% (2002: 2.39%) and these deposits
have an average maturity of 550 days (2002: 404 days).

22.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at December 31, cash and cash equivalents consisted of:

The Group The Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
Cash

RMB 216 223 106 139
HKD denominated 30 55 — —
USD denominated 68 88 — —
GBP denominated 13 il — —
EUR denominated 20 17 — —
347 394 106 139

Demand deposits
RMB 1,557,464 1,319,654 1,499,081 1,283,045
USD denominated 426,702 181,426 369,685 112,635
HKD denominated 49,666 391,126 36,705 383,010
JPY denominated 773 822 — —
2,034,605 1,893,028 1,905,471 1,778,690
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,034,952 1,893,422 1,905,577 1,778,829
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ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

The Group The Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Accounts payable 112,017 49,924 99,926 48,229
Accrued departure technology support fee 103,668 68,052 110,672 74,560
Accrued technical bonus to employees 54,264 41,647 52,394 41,647
Accrued rentals — 208 — —
Accrued technical support fee 14,117 8,093 13,685 8,093
Accrued network usage fees 55,562 7,112 50,677 5,243
Other accruals 26,433 18,008 24,628 9,797
366,061 193,044 351,982 187,569

As of December 31, 2003, approximately RMB 128,490,283 of the above balances were denominated in US dollars (2002:
RMB 43,860,287).

The aging analysis of accounts payable is as follows:
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The Group The Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
Within 6 months 69,762 15,608 60,366 14,428
QOver 6 months but within 1 year 3,737 328 1,045 13
Qver 1 year but within 2 years 13,505 33,987 13,502 33,788
Over 2 years but within 3 years 25,013 — 25,013 —
Total accounts payable 112,017 49,924 99,926 48,229
Accrued liabilities 254,044 143,120 252,056 139,340
366,061 193,044 351,982 187,568
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24, TAXES PAYABLE
The Group The Company

2003 2002 2002
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Enterprise income tax payable 5,343 1,425 —
Business tax payable 14,604 10,169 9,478
VAT payable (190) 62 50
Other 5,089 1,484 1,229
24,846 13,140 10,757

25.  PAID-IN CAPITAL

The paid-in capital as at December 31, 2003 represented 577,303,500 Domestic Shares that were issued by the Company

upon incorporation and 310,854,000 H Shares that were issued by the Company in February, 2001.

2003 2003
Number of shares Amount
RMB'000 RMB'000
Authorised:

Domestic Shares of RMB1 each: 577,304 577,304
H Shares of RMB1 each: 310,854 310,854
Total shares of RMB1 each: 888,158 888,158

Issued and fully paid:
Domestic Shares of RMB1 each: 577,304 577,304
H Shares of RMB1 each: 310,854 310,854
Total shares of RMB1 each: 888,158 888,158
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26. RESERVES

i

g

Statutory Statutory Discretionary g

Surplus Public Surplus %

Capital Reserve Welfare Reserve A

Surplus Fund Fund Fund Total =

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 g

Group g

Balance as at January 1, 2002 1,194,956 55,216 44,842 — 1,295,014 -

Transfer from retained earnings — 42,889 42,888 72,883 158,660 §

Balance as at December 31, 2002 1,194,556 98,105 87,730 72,883 1,453,674 :E

Transfer from retained earnings — 23,080 23,081 84,982 131,143 '§

Balance as at December 31, 2003 1,194,956 121,185 110,811 157,865 1,584,817 g

o

Y

Company 5

Balance as at January 1, 2002 1,194,956 55,216 44,842 — 1,295,014 s

Transfer from retained earnings — 42,491 42,491 72,883 157,865 3

Balance as at December 31, 2002 1,194,956 97,707 87,333 72,883 1,452,879 E
Transfer from retained earnings — 22,716 22,716 84,982 130,414
Balance as at December 31, 2003 1,194,956 120,423 110,049 157,865 1,583,293

27.  APPROPRIATIONS AND DISTRIBUTION OF PROFIT

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, earnings available for distribution by the Company will be
deemed to be the lower of the amounts determined in accordance with (a) the applicable financial rules and regulations
in the PRC ("PRC GAAP"), and (b) IFRS.

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, the distributable net profit after taxation and minority interests
is determined after allowance has been made for:

(i) making up cumulative prior years’ losses, if any;
(i) appropriation to the statutory surplus reserve funds at 10% of the after-tax profit, as determined under PRC
GAAP until the cumulative amounts reach 50% of the Company’s registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve

funds may be converted into capital provided that it is approved by a resolution at a shareholders’ general meeting
and its balance does not fall below 25% of the new registered capital; and
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27.  APPROPRIATIONS AND DISTRIBUTION OF PROFIT (continuea)

(iiiy appropriation to the statutory public welfare funds at 5% to 10% (at the discretion of the Board of Directors) of
the after-tax profit, as determined under PRC GAAP, which can only be used for the collective welfare of the
employees.

The shareholders in the Annual General Meeting on March 14, 2003 approved the appropriation of RMB84,382,000 to
the discretionary surplus reserve. The amount was accounted for in shareholder's equity as an appropriation of retained
earnings in the year ended December 31, 2003.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Board of Directors proposed appropriations of 10%, 10% and 20% of the
net profit (2002: 10%, 10% and 20% respectively) as reflected in the Company’s statutory financial statements prepared
under PRC GAAP, or RMB22,716,000, RMB22,716,000 and RMB45,432,000 (2002: RMB42,491,000, RMB42,451,000
and RMB84,982,000), to the statutory surplus reserve fund , the statutory public welfare fund and the discretionary
surplus reserve fund, respectively.

The proposed appropriation of RMB45,432,000 (20% of net profit after tax) to the discretionary surplus reserve fund for
the year ended December 31, 2003 is subject to shareholders’ approval at the next general meeting. Because of the
adoption of the revised IAS 10, "Events After the Balance Sheet Date”, the appropriation to the discretionary surplus
reserve fund that was proposed after December 31, 2003 will be recorded in the Group’s financial statements for year
ended December 31, 2004.

After the appropriations mentioned above, the reserve available for distribution as at December 31, 2003 was approximately
RMB292,729,000 (2002: RMB326,960,000), which is the lesser of the amounts determined in accordance with PRC

GAAP and IFRS.

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealth with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
RMB236,678,000 (2002: RMB450,744,000) for the year ended December 31, 2003.
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29.

RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION TO CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS

2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB’000

Profit before taxation and minority interests 272,345 459,860
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 149,166 137,373

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,651 5,133

Provision for doubtful debts 2,377 2,981

Share of results from associated companies (11,445) (14,255)
Operating profit before working capital changes 414,094 591,092
Decrease (increase) in current assets:

Accounts receivable (16,282) 7,409

Inventories (617) 749

Prepayments and other current assets (824) (12,323)

Due from related parties/associated companies 52,065 32,215
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 119,248 26,437

Deferred revenue 1.837 (3,180)

Due 1o related parties (10,314) (15,541)

Taxes payable 11,705 (1,235)
Cash generated from operations 570,912 625,623

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to market risks arising from changes in interest and foreign exchange rates. The Group does not use
any derivative financial instruments to manage those risks.

Fair values
The Group’s financial instruments mainly consist of cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits, accounts receivable,
advance 1o suppliers, due from associated companies and related parties, treasury bonds, other long-term assets, accounts

payable and due to related parties.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments except for treasury bonds and other long-term assets approximated
their fair values as at December 31, 2003 because of the short maturities of these instruments.

The carrying amount of treasury bonds and other long-term assets approximated their fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{Amounts expressed in Renminbi (“RMB“) unless otherwise stated)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Credit risks

The extent of the Group's credit exposure is represented by aggregated balance of cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits, accounts receivable, advance to suppliers, short term investment, amounts due from associated companies
and related parties and treasury bonds. The maximum credit risk exposure in the event that other parties fail to perform
their obligations under these financial instruments was approximately RMB 2,749 million as at December 31, 2003 (2002:
RMB 2,678 million).

Counterparties to financial instruments primarily consist of State-owned banks in the PRC, and a large number of airlines
and travel agents. The Group does not expect any counterparties to fail to meet their obligations. The Group has
concentrations of credit risk with these entities.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk related to its capital expenditures because a substantial portion of its
capital expenditures represents imported equipment that is purchased in U.S. dollars. Under the current foreign exchange
system in the PRC, the Group is not able to hedge effectively against currency risks except for the cash and cash equivalents
that denominated in foreign currency. Fluctuation of the exchange rates of kenminbi against foreign currencies could
affect the Group's results of operations.

30. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group conducts its business within one business segment - the business of providing electronic travel distribution,
airport passenger processing, data network and other services in the PRC. The Group’s chief decision maker for operation
is considered to be the Group’s general manager. The information reviewed by the general manager is identical to the
information presented in the consolidated income statement. No segment income statement has been prepared by the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002. The Group also operates within one geographical segment
because its revenues are primarily generated in the PRC and its assets are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no geographical
sagment data is presented.
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31. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

As at December 31, the Group had the following capital commitments:

2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB'000

Authorised and contracted for

- Computer systems 1,208 19,858
Authorised but not contracted for

- Computer systems 322,000 —

Total 323,208 19,858

The above capital commitments primarily relate to the acquisition and installation of the next generation electronic
travel distribution system.

No capital commitments outstanding as at December 31, 2003 was denominated in U.S. dollars (2002: RMB2.3
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million).

(b) Operating lease commitments

As at December 31, the Group had the following commitments under operating leases:

2003 2002

RMB’000 RMB'000

Within one year 36,483 32,045
Later than one year but not later than five years 126,011 120,469
Later than five years 50,509 80,627
Total 212,993 233,141

(¢} Equipment maintenance fee commitments

As at December 31, 2003, the Group had total equipment maintenance fee commitments of approximately
RMB8.3 million (2002: RMB5.0 million).

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 TRAVELSKY TECHNOLOGY LIMITED




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”) unless otherwise stated)

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Entities are considered to be related if one has the ability to control the other, directly or indirectly, or has the ability to
exercise significant influence over the financial and operating decisions of the other. Entities are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence.

The following is a summary of significant recurring transactions carried cut with the Group's related parties.

(1) Related parties

The major related parties of the Company and the Group are as folloss:

Name Relationship with the Company
China TravelSky Holding Company ("CTHC”) Shareholder of the Company
China Southern Air Holding Co. Shareholder of the Company
China Eastern Air Helding Co. Shareholder of the Company

Air China Shareholder of the Company
China Northern Airlines Co. Shareholder of the Company
China Eastern Air - Northwest Airlines Co. Shareholder of the Company
China Eastern Air - Yunnan Airlines Co. Shareholder of the Company
Xinjiang Airlines Co. Shareholder of the Company
China National Aviation Corp. Shareholder of the Company
Xiamen Airlines Limited Company Shareholder of the Company
Hainan Airlines Company Limited Shareholder of the Company
China National Aviation Holding Co. Parent company of certain shareholders of the Comany

(2) Related party transactions
The Group had the following material related party transactions.
0 Revenue for electronic travel distribution, airport passenger processing, data network, etc., the pricing of

which was based on negotiated prices with these related parties with reference to the pricing standards
prescribed by CAAC where applicable.

Name 2003 2002

RMB'000 RMB’000
China Southern Air Holding Co. (a) 127,952 171,936
China Eastern Air Holding Co. (b) 118,342 117,247
China National Aviation Holding Co. (¢) 114,893 120,391
Hainan Airlines Company Limited 59,986 54,046
Xiamen Alrlines Limited Company 54,167 42,267
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(2) Related party transactions (continued)

(a) It represented the transactions entered into between the wholly owned subsidiaries of China
Southern Air Holding Co., namely China Southern Air Co. Ltd., China Northern Airlines Co. and
Xinjiang Airlines Co. and other subsidiaries.

(b) It represented the transactions entered into between the wholly owned subsidiaries of China
Eastern Air Holding Co., namely China Eastern Air Co. Ltd. and Yunnan Airlines Co. and other
subsidiaries.

(0 It represented the transactions entered into between the Group and China National Aviation

Holding Co. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, namely Air China and China National Aviation
Corporation and other subsidiaries.

In the Directors’ opinion, these transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary
course of business and on normal commercial terms.
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(ii) Lease of properties from CTHC

For the year ended December 31, 2003, operating lease rentals for lease of properties from CTHC amounted
to RMB 30,807,105 (2002: RMB 30,117,000). The pricing of operating lease rentals for buildings is based
on agreed rates with CTHC with reference to market rentals.

(3) Balances with related parties
Balances with related parties mainly comprised:

Due from related parties

The Group The Company
Name 2003 2002 2003 2002
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
China Southern Air Holding Co. (a) 7,294 12,793 4,575 10,667
China Eastern Air Holding Co. (b) 22,136 41,739 20,301 37,070
China National Aviation Holding Co. (¢ 24,053 41,502 21,615 41,502
Shenzhen Air Holding Co. 9,314 1,221 8,131 1,221
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(3) Balances with related parties (continued)

(a) It represented the balances due from the wholly owned subsidiaries of China Southern Air Holding Co.,
namely China Southern Air Co. Ltd., China Northern Airlines Co. and Xinjiang Airlines Co. and other
subsidiaries.

(b) It represented the balances due from the wholly owned subsidiaries of China Eastern Air Holding Co.,
namely China Eastern Air Co. Ltd. and China Northwest Airlinas Co. and Yunnan Airlines Co. and other

subsidiaries.

(0 It represented the balances due from China National Aviation Holding Co. and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
namely Air China and China National Aviation Corporation and other subsidiaries.

The balances with related parties were unsecured, non-interest bearing and generally repayable within six months.
The balances with related parties primarily arose from the above related party transactions.
33. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The directors regard China TravelSky Holding Company established in the PRC as being the ultimate holding company.

34. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on March 11, 2004.
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Consolidlated Balance Sheet
Supplementary Financial Information Provided by the Management

As at December 31,

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net 326,921 281,944 403,997 340,632 545,345
Intangible assets, net — — 14,238 9,098 11,093
Investments in associated companies 3,132 6,424 12,391 23,646 36,327
Other long-term investment — — 100,000 100,000 100,000
Other long-term assets — — 8,465 5,746 4,901
330,053 288,368 539,091 479,122 697,675
Current assets
Inventories 15,150 9,680 2,767 2,018 2,635
Accounts receivable, net 47,743 44,368 14,837 4,447 18,352
Due from associated companies 2,856 11,416 598 377 65
Due from related parties 259,968 229,845 168,536 135,371 83,619
Prepayments and other current assets 18,741 31,362 15,356 30,826 32,005
Short-term investment — — — 2,195 1,920
Short-term bank deposits 16,984 27,406 516,186 539,491 505,000
Cash and cash equivalents 163,037 584,729 1,636,818 1,893,422 2,034,952
524,479 939,306 2,355,098 2,608,147 2,678,548
Total assets 854,532 1,227,674 2,894,189 3,087,269 3,376,223
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Paid in capital 260,133 577,304 888,158 888,158 888,158
Reserves 331,788 272,856 1,295,014 1,453,674 1,584,817
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (21,756) — 333,045 464,191 405,063
570,165 850,160 2,516,217 2,806,023 2,878,038
Minority interests 21,168 32,735 30,613 37,600 40,305
Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term bank loan 800 — — — -_
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 57,002 65,158 167,092 193,044 366,061
Due to relat_ed parties 36,366 6,682 38,447 22,906 64,922
Dividends payable — 124,051 124,051 14,342 —
Taxes payable 168,243 140,508 14,375 13,140 24,846
Deferred revenue 788 8,380 3,394 214 2,051
263,189 344,779 347,359 243,646 457,880
Total equity and liabilities 854,532 1,227,674 2,894,189 3,087,269 3,376,223

Note:  Certain prior year figures have been reclassified to better present the financial position of the Group.
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Consolidated Income Statement
¢

Supplementary Financial Information Provided by the Management

Year ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB‘000
Revenues:
Electronic trave!l distribution 358,793 439,119 459,868 524,915 431,827
Airport passenger processing 98,220 155,546 203,558 242,563 232,105
Data network 389,879 108,960 114,608 162,067 158,729
Others 46,762 38,362 52,766 47,897 70,957
Total revenues 603,654 741,987 830,801 977,442 893,618
Business taxes and other surcharges (19,344) (24,735) (29,652) (32,604) (32,005)
Net revenues 584,310 717,252 801,149 944,838 861,613
Operating expenses:
Depreciation and amortisation (88,218) (104,857) (109,558) (137,373) (149,166)
Network usage (34,803) (54,772) (48,540) (49,823) (58,792)
Personnel (33,787) (39,656) (72,019) (99,595) (147,783)
Cperating lease rentals (18,670) (31,516) (35,278) (37,109) (42,870)
Technical support and
maintenance fees (21,525) (42,295) (40,701) (45,735) (44,650)
Commission and promotion expenses (18,002} (26,933) (44,207) (75,397) (74,537)
Other operating expenses (53,986) (69,807) (84,216) (93,838) (119,492)
Total operating expenses (268,991) (369,836) (434,719) (538,870) (637,290)
Operating profit 315,319 347,416 366,430 405,968 224,323
Financial income (charges), net (960) 4,921 41,956 42,635 34,569
Share of results from associated
companies 392 3,446 7,289 14,255 11,445
Other (expenses) income, net 209 (2,729) (4,102) (2,998) 2,008
Profit before taxation
and minority interests 314,960 353,054 411,573 459,860 272,345
Taxation (103,742) (94,166) (3,189) (3,149) (23,092)
Income before minority interests 211,218 258,888 408,384 456,711 249,253
Minarity interests (3,180) (2,296) (483) (3,484) (6,712)
Net profit 208,038 256,592 407,901 453,227 242,541
Earnings per share, basic and
diluted (RMB) 0.36 0.44 0.48 0.51 0.27
Weighted average number of shares
outstanding (thousand) 577,304 577,304 855,314 888,158 888,158
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DIRECTORS

Chairman

Ma Tiesheng, age 57, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company. He is a senior accountant. Mr. Ma
graduated from Beijing Language Institute. From January 1984 to March 1991, he was the Deputy Chief Officer and then the
Chief Officer of the international Settlement Office of the Treasury Division of the Civil Aviation Administration of China (¥ CAAC™).
From March 1991 to December 1992, he was the Manager of the Accounting Centre of China Aviation. From December 1992 to
June 2000, he served as the General Manager of the Accounting Centre of China Aviation. From June 2000 to October 2002, he
was the Chief Officer of the Administrative Office of CAAC. He has been the General Manager of CTHC since October 2002.
Starting from December 2003, he became a director and the Chairman of the first Board of the Company. In December 2003, he
was re-elected as a director and the Chairman of the second Board of the Company.

Executive Directors

Zhu Yong, age 40, is an Executive Director and CEO of the Company. Mr. Zhu is a senior engineer. He graduated from Huazhong
Polytechnic University and received a master's degree in engineering from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics.
Mr. Zhu has nearly 20 years of experience in China’s aviation industry. From August 1983 to April 1991, Mr. Zhu was an engineer
in CAAC. He was the Manager of the Computer Depariment of the Accounting Centre of China Aviation in May 1991 and the
Manager of the Computer Department and also Vice Chief Engineer of the Accounting Center of China Aviation in January 1994,
He became the Deputy General Manager of the Accounting Center of China Aviation in May 1996, and has been the General
Manager of the Accounting Center of China Aviation since June 2000. In April 2001, Mr. Zhu was appointed as CEQ of the
Company. He has been a member of the first Board of the Company since May 2001 and has also been a Deputy General Manager
of China TravelSky Holding Company since October 2002. In December 2003, he was re-elected as a director of the second Board
and continued to serve as CEO of the Company.

Ding Weiping, age 52, is an Executive Director and the Company Secretary of the Company. He graduated from Beijing Industry
Technology University and has over 20 years of management experience in China’s aviation industry. From December 1879 to May
1984, Mr. Ding was an employee of CAAC. From May 1884 to October 1987, he was employed by CACI. From October 1987 to
August 2000, he served as the Deputy Director of the Information Technology Room and then as the Vice Chief Engineer of CACI.
Mr. Ding was also the head of the Planning Department of CACH from July 1999 1o August 2000. From July 1999 1o August 2000,
Mr. Ding also served as the Officer-in-charge of the Corporate Restructuring Department of CACI. Mr. Ding has served as a
Director and the Company Secretary of the Company as well as Deputy Chief Engineer and the General Manager of the Strategic
Planning Department of the Company since October 2000. In December 2003, he was re-elected as a director of the second Board
and the Company Secretary of the Company.

Song Jinxiang, age 55, is a Supervisor and the Deputy Chief Economist of the Company. Mr. Song graduated from the Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics and has over 20 years of management experience in China‘s aviation industry. From
December 1976 to September 1981, Mr. Song was a technician at CAAC. From September 1981 to July 1999, he served as the
Deputy Director and then as the Director of the Business Planning Department of CACI. Mr. Song was the Deputy Chief Economist
of CACI from July 1999 to August 2000. He has been the Deputy Chief Economist and a member of the first Supervisory Committee
of the Company since October 2000. In December 2003, he was elected as a director of the second Board of the Company.
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Non-executive Directors

Wang Quanhua, age 49, is one of the Vice Chairmen of the Board. Mr. Wang is a university graduate and has about 30 years of
management experience in China’s civil aviation industry. He joined China Southern Airlines Co., Ltd. in June 1891. Since June
1988, he served as the General Manager of the Strategic Planning Department, and then as the Assistant President and Vice
President of Southern Airlines (Group) Co.. He has been the Deputy General Manager of China Southern Air Holding Company
since October 2002 and a director of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since March 2003. In December 2003, Mr. Wang
was elected as a director and Vice Chairman of the second Board of the Company.

Cao Jianxiong, age 44, is one of the Vice Chairmen of the Board. Mr. Cao is an economist. He has a master’s degree in economics
and has over 20 years of experience in China’s civil aviation industry. He was the Chief Officer of the Human Resources Section of
China Eastern Airlines and then tock on the position of General Manager of China Eastern Airlines Development Company and
China Eastern Airlines Futures Company from December 1987 to March 1996. From March 1996 to December 1996, Mr. Cao was
the Assistant to the General Manager of China Eastern Airlines and from December 1996 to December 1999, Mr. Cao served as
the Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial Officer of China Eastern Airlines Corporation. From December 19389 to October
2002, Mr. Cao served as a Vice President of Eastern Airlines Group Corporation. He has been a director and Vice Chairman of the
first Board of the Company since October 2000. Since October 2002, he has been the Vice President of China Eastern Air Holding
Company and the Secretary of Party Committee in China Eastern Xibei Airlines. In December 2003, Mr. Cao was re-elected as a
director and Vice Chairman of the second Board of the Company.

Zhang Xueren, age 50, is one of the Vice Chairmen of the Board. Mr. Zhang is a senior economist. He graduated from Sichuan
Foreign Languages University and has almost 25 years of experience in China’s aviatior industry. From March 1979 to July 1982,
Mr. Zhang was the Commercial Officer of the Tehran Office of CAAC. He returned tc Beijing in 1982 and held the position of
Deputy Director of the International Freight Department of the Beijing Bureau of CAAC. From January 1990 to April 1998, he
served as the Manager of In-Freight Department of Air China Corporation, and from April 1998 to December 1998, he was the
General Manager of the Tianjin Branch of Air China. Mr. Zhang has been the Vice President of Air China since December 1998.
Since October 2000, he has been a director and Vice Chairman of the first Board of the Company. In December 2003, Mr. Zhang
was re-elected as a director and Vice Chairman of the second Board of the Company.

Rong Gang, age 41, is one of the Non-executive Directors. Mr. Rong is a senior engineer and obtained a degree in MBA from
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University. He has 20 years of experience in China’s aviation industry. From August
1983 to May 1996, Mr. Rong was an employee of CAC!. From May 1996 to May 1999, he was employed by CAAC. From May
1999 to October 2002, Mr. Rong served as the Vice President of CACI. He has been the Deputy General Manager of China
TravelSky Holding Company since October 2002. He was a director of the first Board of the Company. In December 2003, Mr,
Rong was re-elected as a director of the second Board of the Company.

Yang Yatie, age 59, is one of the Non-executive Directors. He is a senior accountant and has nearly 40 years of experience in
financial managementin China’s civil aviation industry. From December 1971 to March 1980, he was an accountant in International
Affairs department of CAAC Headquarter. From March 1980 to March 1988, he served in International Settlement Cffice of
Financial Department of CAAC. From March 1988 to August 1992, he was the accountant of London office of CAAC. Since
August 1992, he has been an accountant, Deputy Chief Accountant and then the Chief Accountant of China Aviation Accounting
Centre. Since October 2002, he has also been the Chief Accountant of China TravelSky Holding Company. In December 2003, Mr.
Yang was elected as a director of the second Board of the Company.
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Li Xiaoguang, age 45, is one of the Non-executive Directors. He graduated from Tianjin Civil Aviation College and obtained a
master's degree in management from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics in 1999. Mr. Li has nearly 20 years of
management and mechanic experience in China’s aviation industry. From July 1982 to October 1990, Mr. Li was an engineer in the
Technology Department of the Civil Aviation Maintenance Factory of China Northern Airlines. From October 1990 to July 2001, he
served as the Deputy Chief Engineer and then the Chief Engineer of China Northern Airlines. Since then, Mr. Li has been the
Deputy General Manager of China Northern Airlines. He was a member of the first Board of the Company. In December 2003, Mr.
Li was re-elected as a director of the second Board of the Company.

Si Yupei, age 51, is one of the Non-executive Directors. Mr. Siis a senior economist and has about 30 years of management
experience in China’s civil aviation industry. From August 1987 to January 1988, he served in the Labour Division of Xi'an management
office of CAAC. From January 1989 to October 2002, he served as the Deputy Officer and then the Officer of Personnel Division,
Chief Human Resource Officer, Deputy Chief Economist and Deputy Secretary of Party Committee in China Airline Northwestern
Company. Since October 2002, he has been the Deputy Secretary of Party Committee in China Eastern Xibei Airlines. In December
2003, Mr. Si was elected as a director of the second Board of the Company.

Song lJian, age 42, is one of the Non-executive Directors. Mr. Song is a postgraduate of Nanjing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics in management science and engineering. From January 1897 to February 2002, he was the Deputy Officer of Computer
Centre of Air China Corporation. Since February 2002, he has been the Deputy General Manager of the Information Technology
Centre of Air China. In December 2003, Mr. Song was elected as a director of the second Board of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Wu Jiapei, age 71, is a leading economist in China. Between 1855 to 1986, Mr. Wu was a researcher at the Economics Institute
of the Chinese Academy of Sciences and subsequently became a senior fellow and the Director of the Quantitative Economics and
Technological Economics of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. From 1987 to 1998, Mr. Wu was the Chief Economist, Vice
President, and then Chairman of the Experts Committee of China State Information Centre. Mr. Wu has been abroad as a visiting
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scholar and visiting professor in the United States and Japan. Mr. Wu is now Honorary Chairman to the Experts Committee of
China State Information Center, the Vice President of the Chinese Information Industry Association, Honorary Dean of the Economics
and Management College of Huagiao University and a part-time professor of some universities in China. Mr. Wu is @ member of
the Appraisal Task Force for Applied Economics Disciplines of the Second, Third and Fourth State Council’s Academic Degree
Committee and has published over 20 books on economics. He was a member of the first Board of the Company. In December
2003, Mr. Wu was elected as a director of the Second Board of the Company.

Chow Kwok Wah, James, age 58, graduated from the Faculty of Commerce in Regent Institute, London, in 1966. Mr. Chow is
the Chairman of the Consco Group, which major businesses include property investment and the production of raw materials for
the telecommunications industry in China. From 1978 to 1994, Mr. Chow participated actively in the Hong Kong stock market and
was a member and licensee of both the Far East Exchange Ltd. and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Chow has
more than 20 years of investment experience in China and his investments include the Jing An Hilton Hotel and Nantong Hotel in
Shanghai, the Tianjin international Building, and the Tianjin Somerset Olympic Tower. He was a member of the first Board of the
Company. In December 2003, Mr. Chow was elected as a director of the Second Board of the Company.

Lee Kwok Ming, Don, age 46, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, a member of Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants and an Australian Chartered Management Accountant. He obtained a master's degree in business
management from Bath University in United Kingdom. He has over 20 years of experience in financial management and is experienced
in the areas of merger and acquisitions and corporate finance. Mr. Lee is an executive director of Vitop Bioenergy Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1178). He is also an independent director of Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co. Ltd (Stock code: 980). In December
2003, Mr. Lee was elected as a director of the second Board of the company.
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Supervisors

Li Xiaojun, age 48, the Chairperson of Supervisory Committee, is a senior economist. She graduated from People‘s University of
China and has nearly 20 years of management experience in China’s aviation industry. From March 1983 to May 1988, Ms. Li
worked in the Planning Department of the Beijing Bureau of CAAC. From May 1988 to December 1997, she held the positions of
Deputy Director and then Director of the Planning Department of Air China. Ms. Li was the Director of the Human Resources
Department of CAAC from December 1997 to August 2000. She has been a Director and Deputy General Manager of the
Company since October 2000. She has also been the Deputy Secretary to the Communist Party Committee in China TravelSky
Holding Company since October 2002. She was a member of the first Board of the Company. In December 2003, Ms. Li was
elected as a supervisor and the Chairperson of the second Supervisory Committee of the Company.

Du Hongying, age 44, is a Supervisor. Ms. Du is a senior accountant. She graduated from Xiamen University and has nearly 20
years of accounting and finance experience in China’s aviation industry. From August 1982 to January 1985, Ms. Du was a teacher
at the Tianjin Civil Aviation College of China. In January 1985, Ms. Du joined Xiamen Airlines Limited as a finance officer and since
1939 she has been working as the Deputy General Manager of the Planning and Finance Department of Xiamen Airlines. She was
a member of the first Supervisory Committee of the Company. In December 2003, Ms. Du was elected as a supervisor of the
second Supervisory Committee of the Company.

Zhang Yakun, age 45, is a Supervisor. Mr. Zhang graduated from Xi'an University of Cemmunications with a master's degree and
has nearly 20 years of professional experience in China’s aviation industry. From 1983 t¢ 1999, he served in Yunnan management
office of CAAC. From 1999 to 2001, he was the former Deputy Officer of Operation and Control Centre and then the General
Manager of Information Technology Department of Yunnan Airlines. Since October 2002, he was the General Manager of the
Information Technology Department of China Eastern Yunnan Airlines. In December 2003, Mr, Zhang was elected as a supervisor
of the second Supervisory Committee of the Company.

Wang Yonggqiang, age 34, is a Supervisor. Mr. Wang graduated from China Civil Aviation University, and has already 10 years
experience in China’s aviation industry. From July 1992 to June 1995, Mr. Wang served in Engineering Department of China
XinHua Airlines. From June 1995 to March 2000, Mr. Wang served in Hainan Airlines, as a chief officer of the computer centre and
an administration manager for Hainan Airlines. From March 1997 to August 1997, Mr. Wang attended training courses on high
level management in the aviation industry in Germany. Mr. Wang has been the General Manager and Chairman of HNA Systems
Co., Ltd since March 2000. Since November 2002, he has been the Senior Assistant to Executive President of HNA Group Co., Ltd.
He was a member of the first Supervisory Committee of the Company. In December 2003, Mr. Wang was elected as a supervisor
of the second Supervisory Committee of the Company.

Chen Lihong, age 41, is a Supervisor. Mr. Chen is a senior accountant. He has over 20 years of financial management experience
in China’s aviation industry. From January 1981 to August 1990, Mr. Chen was a technician of the Xinjiang Qitai Agriculture
Machinery Repair and Manufacture Factory and then became an auditor of the Audit Bureau of Qitai Xinjiang. He served as an
Assistant Accountant of the Xinjiang Central Enterprises Department at the Ministry of Finance from August 1990 to January
1993. Since January 1993, Mr. Chen has been working in the Finance Department of Xinjiang Airlines and has served as an Deputy
Director and then as Director. He was a member of the first Supervisory Committee of the Company. In December 2003, Mr. Chen
was elected as a supervisor of the second Supervisory Committee of the Company.
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Tan Xiaoxu, age 57, is a Supervisor and a senior officer of the Company. Mr. Tan is a senior engineer. He graduated from the
Military Foreign Language College and has over 20 years of technical support experience in China’s aviation industry. From April
1973 to October 1975, Mr. Tan was a technician at the Beijing Military Zone. From Octcober 1975 to November 1980, he was a
sales representative at the Beijing Bureau of CAAC. From November 1980 to July 1999, he served as a technician and then as the
Manager of the Applied Technology Department of CACI. Mr. Tan was a senior officer of CACI from July 1999 to August 2000. He
has been working in Network and Operation Department of the Company since October 2000. He was & member of the first
Supervisory Committee of the Company. In December 2003, Mr. Tan was elected as a supervisor of the second Supervisory
Committee of the Company.

Zhang Xin, age 41, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Zhang has over 20 years of technical experience in China’s aviation
industry. From October 1981 to December 1988, Mr. Zhang was & graphic designer at CAAC. From December 1388 to November
1994, Mr. Zhang was a technician at CACI. From November 1994 to August 2000, Mr. Zhang was a senior workman at CAC!. He
has been working in Operation Department of the Company since October 2000. He was a member of the first Supervisory
Committee of the Company. In December 2003, Mr. Zhang was elected as a supervisor of the second Supervisory Committee of
the Company.

Rao Geping, age 55, is an Independent Supervisar. He is a professor and doctorate tutor of the law school of the Peking University,
the director of the Institute of International Law of the Peking University , the Deputy Head of Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan Law
Research Centre in Peking University , Vice President of Chinese Society of International Law and a member of National Panel of
Senior Lecturer under Ministry of Justice. He is also a part-time professor in a number of universities in China including Wuhan
University, Shanghai Teachers University and East China University of Politics and Law. Mr. Rao specializes in areas such as laws of
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan as well as international law, etc. In December 2003, Mr. Rao was elected as a supervisor of the
second Supervisory Committee of the Company.

Company Secretary

Ding Weiping, is also an Executive Director of the Company.
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The board of directars of TravelSky Technology Limited (“the Company”) is pleased to announce that an Annual General meeting
shall be held according to the resolutions passed at a board meeting convened on March 11, 2003 and notice is hereby given that
an Annual General Meeting of TravelSky Technology Limited (the “Company”) will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Wednesday, April 28,
2004 at Crowne Plaza North, Beijing, the People’s Republic of China for the following purposes:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

1. To consider and approve the report of the Directors for the year ended December 31, 2003.
2. To consider and approve the report of the Supervisory Committee for the year ended December 31, 2003,
3 To review the auditors’ report for the year ended December 31, 2003 and to consider and approve the audited financial

statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2003.

4. To consider and approve the distribution of a final dividend and the calculation of such distribution of the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2003.

5. To consider and approve the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs
Ltd. Co. as the international and PRC auditors of the Company, respectively, for the year ending December 31, 2004, and
to authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration thereof.

6. To consider and appreve the establishment and implementation by the Company of a corporate annual remuneration
system from 2004 onwards, and to authorize the board of directors with full power to handle all relevant matters.

7. To consider and approve other matters, if any.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

8. In accordance with the Amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited which will become effective on March 31,2004, Articles 71, 72, 95 and 133 of the Company’s Articles of
Association will be amended. Further, as a result of certain changes in the organizational structure of the Company’s
supervisory committee, Articles 117, 118 and 119 will also be amended. The amendments are as follows:

1. Article 71 "Resolutions of the shareholders’ general meeting shall be divided into ordinary resolutions and special
resolutions.

An ordinary resolution must be passed by votes representing more than one-half of the voting rights represented
by the shareholders (including proxy) present at the meeting.

A special resolution must be passed by votes representing more than two-third of the voting rights represented by
shareholders (including proxies) present at the meeting.

Shareholders (including proxy) present at the meeting shall indicate clearly whether they are in favor of or against

each of the matter to be voted. Forfeiture votes or to abstain from voting shall not be counted in the voting result
by the Company in relation to the relevant matters.”
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to be amended to read as folfows:

Article 71 "Resolutions of the shareholders’ general meeting shall be divided into ordinary resolutions and special
resolutions.

An ordinary resolution must be passed by votes representing more than one-half of the voting rights represented
by the shareholders (including proxy) present at the meeting.

A special resolution must be passed by votes representing more than two-thirds of the vating rights represented
by shareholders (including proxies) present at the meeting.

Shareholders (including proxy) present at the meeting shall indicate clearly whether they are in favor of or against
each of the matter to be voted. Forfeiture votes or to abstain from voting shall not be counted in the voting result
by the Company in relation to the relevant matters.
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That, where any shareholder is, under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), required to abstain from voting on any particular resclution, any votes
cast by or on behalf of such shareholder in contravention of such requirement or restriction shall not be counted.”

Article 72 " A shareholder (including a proxy) when voting at a shareholders’ general meeting, may exercise such
voting rights as are attached to the number of voting shares which he represents. Each share shall have one vote.”

to be amended to read as follows:

Article 72 "Subject to Article 71, a shareholder (including a proxy) when voting at a shareholders’ general meeting,
may exercise such voting rights as are attached to the number of voting shares which he represents. Each share
shall have one vote.”

Article 95 Paragraph 2

"The written notices in relation to the intention to nominate a person for election as a director and the indication
of such person’s willingness to accept the nomination shall be lodged 7 days prior to the date of convening the
general meeting.”

to be amended to read as follows.

“The written notices in relation to the intention to nominate a person for election as a director and the indication

of such person’s willingness to accept the nomination shall be lodged after the day on which the notice of the
meeting appointed for the election of directors is dispatched and at least 7 days prior to the date of such meeting.”
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4. Article 117, Paragraphs 2 and 3

“The Supervisory Committee shall have one chairman. Supervisors shall serve for a term of three years and can be
re-elected or re-appointed.

The appointment and removal of the chairman of the Supervisory Committee shall be determined by the votes of
two-third or above of the members of the Supervisory Committee.”

to be amended to read as follows:

“The Supervisory Committee shall have a chairman and a vice-chairman. Supervisors shall serve for a term of
three years and can be re-elected or re-appointed.

The appointment and removal of the chairman and vice-chairman of the Supervisory Committee shall be determined
by the votes of two-third or above of the members of the Supervisory Committee.”

5. Article 118, Paragraph 1

"The Supervisory Committee shall comprise 4 supervisors who shall represent the shareholders (including those
who are qualified to be external supervisors), 1 independent supervisor and 1 supervisor who shall represent the
employees of the Company. Supervisors representing shareholders and the independent supervisor shall be elected
and removed in general meetings; the supervisor representing employees shall be democratically elected and
removed.”

to be amended to read as follows.

“The Supervisory Committee shall comprise 5 supervisars who shall represent the shareholders (including those
who are qualified to be external supervisors), 1 independent supervisor and 2 supervisors who shall represent the
employees of the Company. Supervisors representing shareholders and the independent supervisors shall be
elected and removed in general meetings; the supervisors representing employees shall be democratically elected

and removed”

6. Article 119 “Company director, manager, deputy manager, finance director and other senior management staff
shall not act concurrently as supervisors.*

to be amended to read as follows:

Articte 119 “Company director, manager, deputy manager and the person in-charge of the finance department
shall not act concurrently as supervisors.”
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7. Article 133 Paragraph 2

“A director shall not vote on any contract or arrangement or any other proposal in which he has a material
interest, and shal! not be counted in the quorum present at the meeting.”

to be amended to read as follows:

“A director shall not vote on any board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any other proposal
in which he or any of his associates ( “associate” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Rules) has a
material interest, and shall not be counted in the quorum present at the meeting”

The Company’s Articles of Association are written in Chinese only and the English text is merely for translation purposes.
If there is any discrepancy between the two versions, the Chinese version of the Articles of Association shall prevail.

By Order of the Board
Ding Weiping
Company Secretary

March 11, 2004

Notes:

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, March 29, 2004 to Wednesday, April 28, 2004 (both days inclusive),
during which time no share transfers will be effected. Holders of the Company’s H shares and domestic shares whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company at the close of business on Friday, March 26, 2004 are entitled to attend the Annual General
Meeting. Transfers of H shares must be lodged with the share registrar of the Company’s H shares by 4:00 p.m. on Friday, March 26, 2004
in order to entitle the transferee to attend the Annual General Meeting.

The address of the share registrar of the Company’s H shares is:
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Room 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Each Shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote
on his or her behalf at the Annual General Meeting.

Shareholders or their proxies should produce proof of identity and other documents as required under the Articles of Association of the
Company when attending the Annual General Meeting. A proxy of a Shareholder who has appointed more than one proxy may only vote
on a poll.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorized in writing, or in the
case of a legal person, must either be executed under its seal or under the hand of a legal representative or other attorney duly authorized
to sign the same. If that instrument is signed by an attorney of the appointer, the power of attorney authorising that attorney to sign, or
other document of authorisation, must be notarially certified. To be valid, for holders of domestic shares, the notarially certified power of
attorney, or other document of authorisation, and the form of proxy must be delivered to the registered address of the Company not less
than 24 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the Annual General Meeting. In order to be valid, for holders of H shares, the
above documents must be delivered to Hong Kong Registrars Limited within the same period of time.

Shareholders who intend to attend the Annual General Meeting in person or by proxy should return the reply slip for attending the Annual
General Meeting to the registered address of the Company on or before Wednesday, April 7, 2004 in person, by mail or by fax.
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6. The Annual General Meeting is expacted to last for half a day. Shareholders (or their proxies) attending the Annual General Meeting are
responsible for their own transportation and accommodation expenses.

7. The registered address of the Company is as follows:

TravelSky Technology Limited
No. 2, Ke Xue Yuan South Read
Haidian District

Beljing 100080, PRC

Contact person: Ding Weiping

Tel: 86 10 - 8401 9073
Fax: 86 10 - 8401 9340
Post office box:  No. 638 Beijing, PRC
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